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T he new millennium will soon be upon us, and we feel there’s no better time
 than now to spruce up our image with a make-over. Beginning with the
  year-end bumper issue, we’ve added more variety to editorial content and
 produced a magazine more colourful and pleasing in outlook.

Needless to say, we couldn’t have done this without your valuable feedback. We have
sifted through your comments, taken some of your suggestions, put in some fresh
ideas of our own and in the process re-created Akauntan Nasional.

You will find that many of the articles now, contributed by a pool of professional
writers, focus on personality profiles, company profiles as well as topics on manage-
ment, the environment, even travel. The editorial team will also be on the look-out for
regional news likely to interest accountants in general or to be of relevance to you in
some specific way.

Ultimately, it is our sole objective to make Akauntan Nasional a terrific read — a
magazine you will look forward to receiving every month. Once in your hands, we
want it to be a literal page-turner!

One article of particular interest to you in this issue will undoubtedly be Strategy in
Working With People. A colleague of mine who came upon it, proclaimed it to be the
most insightful ever on human relationships — and suggested it be re-printed here.
Since we spend most of our time in the work-place, it makes sense to strive hard to
foster better relations with those whom we work with. First published in 1954, then re-
printed in 1977 in The Royal Bank of Canada’s Monthly Letter, the article is laden with
gems of wisdom that management and employees would find useful. We hope there is
much you too can profit from this article.

As the year draws to a close, let’s put our actions this year in perspective and act
upon our shortcomings, so that we are ready to take on the challenges of the new
millennium, a little wiser, a little bolder.

We wish all our readers a Happy New Year.

Editor
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FROM THE PRESIDENT’S DESK

Accountancy Education —
A Need For Reappraisal

B 
ehind the backdrop of the recover-

 ing economic environment, the

 Kongress Ekonomi Bumiputera

 Keempat — Cabaran Milenium

 Baru echoed, “Malaysia has

  achieved tremendous success over

the last three decades.” The focus of the

Congress also led to an educational issue

which touched on the impending shortage

of Bumiputera accountants which failed to

meet the targeted 30 per cent by the end of

this decade set by the Government’s Na-

tional Economic Policy (NEP).

More than 30 years have passed since the

formulation of the NEP. Upon reflection, it

is a disheartening fact that our records in-

dicate that Bumiputera accountants account

for just 2,074 or 15.8 per cent of the total

13,100 accountants registered in the coun-

try. However, this level is still unsatisfactory

despite the contributions made by univer-

sities to improve the quota of bumiputera

accountants since the inception of the NEP.

A reappraisal of the system is therefore re-

quired. It is worth noting that the data also

indicates that when compared with other

professions, the accountancy profession ac-

counts for the lowest in terms of Bumiputera

participation. We now have to face the fact

that we have fallen short of the target.

MIA has often been blamed for the alarm-

ing shortfall to meet the target. However,

MIA does not have the examination mecha-

nism with which to fulfil this target. In its

place, MIA has recognised six of the Insti-

tutions of Higher Learning to achieve this

objective and will continue to do so. The

problem must therefore be addressed by

them collectively.

To understand the ‘deficit’ of such Bumi-

putera accountants, one needs to compre-

hend the entry requirements of an account-

ant. Often, it is an oversight by some quar-

ters that an accounting graduate or gradu-

ate from professional bodies must have at

least three years of working experience be-

fore he or she can qualify as an accountant.

An observation has been made that there

are two grounds for the acute shortage of

Bumiputera accountants. Firstly, it would

appear that there is no locally available na-

tional and uniform examination that could

be the domain of our accounting fraternity.

Next, it would also appear that many of the

Bumiputera accountants slip away during

the “three year relevant practical expe-
rience period”. This is therefore the cru-
cial period that could be the turning point

of many of our Bumiputera accounting

graduates. The reasons which could have

contributed to the shortage are as follows :

a) non-availability of a national and uniform

MIA Examination;

b) lack of practical experience of most of

the educators in the universities;

c) market forces discriminating against

our local university graduates;

Let us think of education as the means of developing our

greatest abilities, because in each of us there is a private

hope and dream which, fulfilled, can be translated into

benefit for everyone and greater strength for our nation.

~ John F. Kennedy ~
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d) openness of the accountancy profession

which results in the number of

Bumiputera graduates being margin-

alised, and

e) reluctance of our government scholars

of related disciplines from foreign uni-

versities to sit for the various recognised

examination papers under the Account-

ants Act, 1967.

It should be noted that this Institute has

always been advocating the MIA Examina-

tion, which is one of its statutory functions.

However, it is with much disappointment

that we have yet to receive the approval to

conduct the examination even though it is

genuinely felt that the MIA Examination

would be an af fordable avenue for the

Bumiputeras to acquire a qualification in ac-

countancy locally that would be acceptable

to the relevant accounting marketplace.

Not all the Local Institutions of Higher

Learning have the requisite brand of an all-

round accounting education programme

that focuses on the readiness of its students

to compete for limited places in the account-

ancy world. A fair majority of the lecturers

are not accountants by profession. They are

noticeably academic and scholastic. Most

of them do not have the practical experience

to impart. Be that as it may, the source of

inspiration for the students to aspire to be

accountants is most likely to be absent.

Perception is strong and sight is weak.

Market forces have a strange way of affect-

ing the composition of Bumiputera account-

ants. The likely negative perception by the

market place on the

graduates from the lo-

cal universities seems

to precipitate their in-

ability to secure em-

ployment after gradua-

tion. In most cases, the

Bumiputera graduates

fail to acquire the three

years practical experience in order to qualify

them as accountants. It is therefore a no-

ticeable trend for them to enter into bank-

“The heart has eyes

which the brain knows

nothing of.”

~ Charles H. Perkhurst~

ing, stockbroking and the commerce and

industry sectors.

Those that do get into the profession are

the determined ones who are prepared to

compete with the more market-ready gradu-

ates trained by the professional bodies. It is

not surprising therefore that some local

graduates are prepared to do further pro-

fessional accountancy examinations on a

voluntary basis even though their degrees

are recognised under the Act. The MIA Ex-

amination would therefore fit nicely into the

scheme of things here.

The accountancy profession is relatively

an open one. This profession with its multi-

ple entry doors in the form of 10 professional

bodies as set out in the Accountants Act, 1967

has enjoyed much success in terms of

choices for the students. These professional

bodies control vigorously not only their out-

put but also their input. The number of

Bumiputeras able to gain entry to these bod-

ies appears to be small. Although they may

have the aspirations to be accountants some

day, the high entry requirements seem to be

the likely barrier to their ideals. This must

be something that the MIA Examination

would seek to remedy.

The scholarship programme introduced

by the government in the 1970s, has reaped

many qualified Bumiputera graduates. They

are the crème de la crème of the Bumiputera

graduates who are the mark of the educated

elite. Generally armed with American dou-

ble degrees in Accounting, they seek to be

accountants in their motherland. The sad

truth is that a fair proportion of them, with-

out pursuing a local ex-

amination in the univer-

sities or professional

bodies, do not have

qualifications recog-

nised under the cur-

rent legislation. It is not

uncommon to find the

cream of our scholars

in other disciplines and sectors of employ-

ment, and moving further away from this

profession!

To counter the lack of relevant practical

experience, the attachment programmes

which were funded by the government, in-

troduced in the 1970s for Bumiputera ac-

countancy graduates to ‘serve’ the account-

ancy firms appears to be a convenient policy.

It allows them to develop confidence and

demonstrate that they can compete success-

fully in society. This partially solved the

problem encountered by Bumiputera gradu-

ates to secure the three years practical ex-

perience. Being in the programme has cer-

tainly brought about an opportunity which

otherwise would have been lost. Perhaps,

if the policy is continued and placed on a

regular basis, it could bring us to a more

palatable figure in the number of account-

ants. The ad hoc and on-off type of govern-

ment policy has left an unwarranted short-

age in the number of Bumiputera account-

ants.

With a radical change in policy to restruc-

ture the Local Universities and the imple-

mentation of world-class MIA examinations,

we may reap untold gains. An examination

that has the credence and quality, which is

a trademark of a qualified accountant, will

be a qualification that can allow the account-

ant to compete in the market place given

the coming scenario of the liberalisation of

the services under the World Trade Organi-

sation.

The truth is not always easy to accept.

The truth would become more popular if it

did not reveal such ugly facts. However, en-

tering into a brand new decade, a new cen-

tury and a new millennium all in one, we

need to renew and rejuvenate ourselves to

face the challenges. As the country strives

to be a regional centre of learning excel-

lence, we need to cast away our old and tired

policies.

As with the time when we undertook un-

orthodox selective capital controls to re-

store stability and implement policies that

injected recovery in a much needed belea-

guered economy, the time is perhaps ripe

to consider changing the way we educate

our students in accountancy.

5
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The Role of Management Accounting in Creating Value

 Introduction

The general idea underlying this paper is based on the
consideration of Management Accounting as an essen-
tial instrument for influencing behaviour and increas-
ing knowledge and innovation, determining factors in

the creation of wealth in firms today.
The appraisal that human knowledge is imperfect and the subse-

quent need for processes that ease its constant acquisition and trans-
mission, was foreseen by Hayek (1945) in his classic article on the
decentralised nature of knowledge in society.

Behavioural aspects of conduct, which accounting systems serve,
confer upon their utility a previously unknown potential — an ex-
planation of why companies choose a specific accounting proce-
dure at specific moments.

Information systems are not neutral with respect to the behaviour
of the persons who use them. And as people do not react passively to
information, their design is a decisive factor in the attainment of goals.

The choice of an adequate design for the accounting system —
an economic understanding of the firm, based explicitly on the eco-

 M A N AG E M E N T  AC C O U N T I N G

F E AT U R E

Management Accounting
             as an Instrument for Influencing
Behaviour and Increasing Knowledge
and Innovation

BY MARIA BEGONA PRIETO MORENO, PH.D., PROFESSOR,
ECONOMICS DEPARTMENT, UNIVERSITY OF BURGOS, SPAIN.

This article aims to illustrate the importance of

management accounting information systems as

mechanisms for increasing knowledge, which is a

decisive factor if firms today are to increase wealth.

Accounting information systems used by manage-

ment, as instruments for measuring expected

behaviour, as well as for measuring their results

and regulating incentives, play a basic role in

learning and the capacity for innovation.

Furthermore, the article includes specific cases

taken from the business world, which show evi-

dence of the link between theory and practice.

6

FMAC of IFAC Year 1999 Theme Booklet

The Role of Management Accounting in Creating Value

ers and others who use their services. It also aims to provide

IFAC members with a range of viewpoints, share insights and

acts as a resource for member bodies.

Entitled “The Role of Management Accounting in Creating

Value”, the 1999 Theme Booklet covers a broad range of

topics, embracing the many aspects of value creation in com-

panies, whether they be multinational, small or medium-

sized organisations.

With each issue we will be publishing one article from the

Theme Booklet to give an idea of the range of articles from

different countries.

TT 
 he Financial and Management Committee (FMAC)

  of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)

 publishes annually a set of articles in booklet form,

 drawn from authors in nations whose accounting

 bodies are members of IFAC. Mr. Tay Beng Wah, a

Council member of MIA, serves in the Committee as the

Malaysian representative to the FMAC of IFAC. Another

Council member, Mr. Yue Sau Him, acts as a Technical Ad-

viser.

The Theme Booklet focuses on leading edge issues that

are of interest to management accountants, their employ-
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Participation
(quality circles, suggestion programmes, brainstorming… )

 • Definition of the Strategy
• Diagnosis of its Key Factors

• Definition of the Behaviour to Encourage

Choice of Representative Variables
Time, Cost, Quality, Service …

Indicators which substitute them integrated
into the areas of Management Accounting :

% defective products, times for stoppages, waiting,

production and checks, launching of new products,

% success, customers satisfied, distances covered and

time taken, number of accidents, % of absenteeism,

products costs, …

Evaluation and Control

KNOWLEDGE AND INNOVATION

erations, as well as for the adoption of specific decisions and for
formulation of the general policies of the firm. In fact, they attempt
to bind planning and control of routine operations with the formu-
lation of strategic goals, which in one way or another must be in-
corporated into these processes.

Management accounting once again emphasises certain ques-
tions, which have been neglected in the last few decades, but for
which it has always had available mechanisms for measuring.

We are referring to the introduction of variables, related to the
strategic goals of the organisation and to the behaviour sought if
these goals are to be reached. As these are normally generic goals
(minimum cost, maximum quality, minimum time, optimum serv-
ice, etc.), quantifiable indicators are sought to measure and to sub-
stitute for them and at the same time set goals and courses of ac-
tion for them. These variables therefore represent the manifesta-
tion of the firm’s strategy. Since they are linked to the process of
evaluation of the employees, they can be measured and corrected.

Among the indicators that the aforementioned variables refer to,
special attention is paid to non-monetary indicators, which together
with monetary ones, are present both in operative and managerial
reports as well as in those drawn up for the strategic planning of
the firm. They are concerned with measuring the performance of
a specific activity (for example, indicators of quality and elapsed
times) or of specific behaviour (for example, productivity, safety,
and absenteeism).

nomic problem of the optimum assignation of scarce resources —
can contribute decisively to an improvement in the assignation of
these resources.

It seems reasonable to assume that the choice of internal account-
ing procedures could affect the ‘game’ of renegotiation, which oc-
curs when an unforeseen contingency arises. Thus, the influence
on the renegotiation may depend on the knowledge that the two
parts possess, received through information, or more precisely,
from the design, distribution, and application that have been made
using the information. The knowledge of the firm and the right
decisions are going to depend largely on the initial choice of proce-
dure for the internal accounting information system.

The Role Played by Management Accounting in
Firms Today, as an Instrument for Creating Value

Its Role as a Mechanism for Influencing Behaviour

Management accounting, by making it easier to envisage proc-
esses and behaviour, serves as an informative base for evalu-

ation and control of global and individual performance. It plays a
fundamental role in motivating members of the firm, encouraging
specific forms of conduct and penalising others. It permits the crea-
tion of a process of induction of behaviour, the goal of which is to
motivate the individual towards collaboration in favour of the firm,
in which he develops his initiative and responsibility and from which
he receives the corresponding rewards. In this way, management
accounting limits opportunist behaviour, thus avoiding dysfunc-
tional decisions.

In fact, management accounting, as an instrument which signals
expected behaviour and is useful in measuring its results and regu-
lating incentives, plays a vital role in learning and the capacity for
innovation. Its usefulness as a mechanism for control and guiding in
the learning process comes into its own in the specification of the
system for measuring and evaluating performance, which is none
other than the specification of the objective function of the firm.

Firms today move in highly competitive markets, where techno-
logical innovation is constant and where the key factors which de-
termine success are grouped around goals such as : manufactur-
ing of high quality products and services at low cost, in the short-
est time possible, optimum service to clients and attention to the
staff of the firm itself.

These premises have unfailingly led to the introduction of or-
ganisational innovation, which has led to the introduction of inter-
nal accounting information systems as mechanisms of basic con-
trol and motivation, centred on measuring and monitoring these
elements and focussed on supplying relevant information to the
different levels of decision-making members making up the firm.

Therefore, it is the reports drawn up by management accounting
that are used to evaluate the advantages and inconveniences of alter-
native courses of action for the firm, guiding the behaviour of its
members, and encouraging actions that contribute to increasing
knowledge and innovation — the principal boosts to the value of the
firm, subsequently permitting successful exploitation of opportuni-
ties that present themselves in the current changing environment.

Consequently, internal accounting processes are designed in such
a way that they serve both for planning and control of routine op-

8
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Its Role as a Mechanism for Increasing Knowledge
and Innovation

In agreement with the ideas set out, management accounting sys-
tems become important strategies when transferring knowledge

to individuals with adequate decision rights, or the said rights to
individuals with knowledge.

The performance of an organisation depends on the location of
decision rights near to the knowledge relevant to decision-making.
When a piece of knowledge is valuable for decision-making, then it
will be beneficial to situate the decision where this knowledge is
located.

Now, since all members of the firm have private interests, the
simple delegation of decision rights signalling the objective func-
tion that each member must maximise, is not enough to reach this
objective. A system of control is necessary that binds individual
interests more closely with those of the organisation. Management
accounting, as a fundamental part of the control system, specifies
the system of measurement and evaluation of the performance of
each unit of the firm and of each deciding agent. Together with
this, a system of reward or punishment will come into play, binding
reward with performance, thus completing the control system. Bear-
ing these considerations in mind, from a viewpoint of the global
organisational design, the role assumed by management account-
ing can be summarised as :

Here we should point out, however, that the role assumed by man-
agement accounting in firms today is clearly reinforced by informal
control mechanisms that forment participation in the exercise of the
decision process, or at least in some of its phases (initiation, ratifica-
tion, introduction and monitoring). The search for conditions that
favour learning and thus improve efficiency is carried out for this
reason. Training and participation techniques are integrated that feed
the process of initiation and encouragement of actions, which finally
are translated into greater knowledge, making innovation possible.

Only in this way can one move from learning based on making
routine and developing skills in the use of resources, to learning
based on the development of strategic capacities — those capaci-
ties that are difficult to imitate or substitute for, and on which the
firm can base its competitive advantages.

Participation is fundamental if one is to reach a congruence be-
tween the individual’s and the organisation’s goals, as well as to
complement the formal control systems. Participation favours as-
signation and assumption of decision rights as well as the introduc-
tion of means permitting evaluation of one’s own performance, im-
proving execution, and evaluation of one’s work.

This system requires a precise mechanism for global control that
allows one to channel, coordinate and evaluate efforts made. Infor-
mation systems that depend on management accounting intervene
a great deal at this moment. It is these systems that show superi-
ors the efforts of their subordinates. At the same time, if they are
correctly distributed and communicated, they transmit to the em-
ployees what is essential in the development of the firm, and pro-
vide the confirmation of their own efforts. They allow for evalua-
tion of progress and avoid personal conflict.

The introduction of channels of transmission and discussion sup-
plied by management accounting, such as work groups, brainstorm-
ing, quality circles and suggestion programmes etc., forment par-
ticipation and permit management accounting to reach its full po-
tential as a guide for learning, motivating the acquisition of knowl-
edge and encouraging innovation — the principal boosts for the
creation of value in the firm.

Some Experiences

Once the theoretical arguments on the role of management
accounting as an instrument capable of generating value

within the firm have been outlined, we go on to give brief details of
some case studies that verify in the real world of business the con-
siderations put forward.

Analysis of an Explanatory Case

During the last 10 years we have been able to observe the
changes that have taken place in management accounting in a

large multinational company in the automobile industry situated in
Burgos (Spain). The evolution of the company in the period 1988-93
was documented in the article “Changes in Internal Accounting Infor-
mation Systems: Analysis of a Case”. In it, through ideas similar to those
set out here, we attempted to achieve convincing explanations for these
changes and for the role played by management accounting in this
company, whose strategic mission consisted of “becoming the world
leader” and whose goals were expressed in the following way : “pro-
duce and supply top quality products, on time, and at competitive prices”.

Organisational Design

Systems which assign

information and decision rights

Management Accounting

Information   Decision

to individuals      rights to

with           individuals

decision        with

rights          knowledge

Acquisitions of knowledge

which makes innovation

possible

Systems which reward or

punish these behaviours

System of incentives

   Behaviour of individuals in

harmony with the goals of the

organisation
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Specifically, the introduction of new management accounting pro-
cedures was structured on the company developing a wide range
of generic principles and norms. The basis of these principles —
approximation to clients/suppliers; knowing the causes of prob-
lems and checking them at once in situ; formation of workteams,
whose objectives were to seek cooperation and encourage knowl-
edge and innovation; etc. — formed the basis on which the com-
pany wanted to lay the foundation of the individual’s behaviour,
supported and strengthened by putting into practice basic norms,
which were reflected in procedures and measurement systems that
permitted control and improvement. In this way, principles, norms,
and accounting procedures, supported and complemented each
other in the management process in order to achieve the general
goals of the organisation.

Thus, the design of management accounting was linked with that
of the expression of the norms on which the company based its
competitiveness : cooperation, safety, quality, productivity, volume
of production and reduction of costs. Management accounting in-
corporated in its analysis a series of monetary and non-monetary
indicators that identified and measured the efforts made by all the
agents of the company to achieve the goals enumerated in these
norms. It equally permitted their comparison with the values of
the previous period, with the standard set by the company, and
with other factories in the group.

Some of the indicators we observed, focussed on attaining the
norms set by the company, referred to questions such as in the
table below.

The use of these indicators, together with application of stand-
ard costs focussed on the activities in the process and of exhaus-
tively reviewed monthly budgets, permitted improvement in the
process of assigning resources, and finally increased the resulting
value of cooperative effort.

In summary we concluded that :

n The changes observed in the internal accounting information
systems conformed to a large extent to the profound structural

changes that had taken place in the last few years, to technologi-
cal information and the need to adapt to an increasingly competi-
tive environment;

n Greater environmental uncertainty and complexity required new
forms of organisation of economic activity, new information sys-
tems, planning, control, and therefore, new accounting procedures;

n The design of organisational routines and of internal accounting
information systems occurred simultaneously and in close con-
nection. The latter proved to be a variable endogenous to the
general design of the organisation and a crucial factor in the ac-
quisition of the organisation’s strategic goals;

n Internal accounting information systems formed part of the efficient
contractual technology of the firm as mechanisms for coordination,
motivation and control of all those participating in the organisation,
thus contributing to an improvement in processes of assignation of
resources, augmenting the global efficiency of the organisation, and
increasing the resulting value of the cooperative effort;

n Accounting procedures generated positive economic effects, in
that they served to coordinate common knowledge disseminated
in the organisation and to encourage negotiation and coopera-
tive agreement, thus reducing conflict of interests and opportun-
ist behaviour in the heart of the organisation, by means of ad-
equate incentives;

n Changes observed in internal accounting information systems
seemed to respond, in accordance with what has been said be-
fore, to the need to link planning and control of routine opera-
tions with strategic goals, and

n New procedures served, above all, as transfer guides for all that
was essential to the development of the firm, but also as mecha-
nisms to visualise and control processes, activities, and behav-
iour, always with the aim of reducing asymmetric information
problems and thus reducing contractual and production costs,
which different ways of organising economic activity involve.

SAFETY CO-OPERATION QUALITY TIME PERSONNEL PRODUCTIVITY AND

PRODUCTION CAPACITY

n No. of days lost n No. of monthly n % of defective n Process time n Evolution of the n Direct workforce/

through meetings of final products number of unit of production

accidents quality circles n Time machines workers and

n % of useless are stopped their work n Total workforce/

n No. of n Level of final products situation unit of production

consecutive participation n Time for

days not lost n % of waste of changes n Flexibilty and n % occupation of

n Reports examined raw materials distribution of productive

n Absenteeism staff capacity

through n No. of solutions

accidents proposed for n Participation in n Monthly

at work specific problems training courses production in

units and by

n No. of suggestions weight

directed at

improvements
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Analysis of Exploratory Cases

Looking from an exploratory viewpoint
rather than from an explanatory one, we

summarise and analyse some cases1, which
have already appeared in other publications.
All these cases were firms that had introduced
activity based costing (ABC) as a model for
cost management [Prieto, 1997, pp.121-177].

After analysing these cases and discuss-
ing the theory of the accounting model es-
tablished in them, we generalise on some
of the partial conclusions obtained from
these studies with regard to results obtained
after introducing the new cost models. The
conclusions are summarised as follows :

n That the new model provides greater knowl-
edge of those processes that create value.

n That it permitted all the company staff to
reflect on which variables were determin-
ing that assigned goals were achieved.

n That its introduction was linked to a
greater use of techniques of participation
in order to feed the process of initiation
and incitation towards actions that lead to
acquisition of greater knowledge, which
the results reached, had made possible.

n That it highlighted malfunctions that
made internal reorganisation possible.

n That it implied a large increase in non-
financial indicators.

n That it had supposed increases in productiv-
ity and a reduction in the duration of cycles.

The cases selected confirmed the general
hypothesis that integral management account-
ing models, because of their capacity to com-
bine financial and non-financial indicators, are
a useful mechanism for easing transfer of
knowledge (specific), influencing behaviour,
and encouraging innovation, which are deter-
mining factors in the creation of wealth.

Schematically, we can represent the
model by the illustration on the left.

Analysis of an Experimental Case

Recently, in the same line of investiga-
tion, we have dealt with the design and

introduction, with computer technology, of
a model of management accounting in an in-
dustrial firm2, the objective : to calculate the
cost of different activities performed by the
firm as well as to control and improve their
evaluated performance. Equally, it allows one
to obtain, in real time, the costs of more than
40 references which can be produced.

The firm belongs to the car industry and
manufactures parts for the large multina-
tionals in the sector. Before the firm re-
quested our study, the only control was that
of storage of materials. The rest of the costs
(almost 50 per cent) were attributed to prod-
ucts through standard cost drivers, estab-
lished in a fairly random way. The degree
of control over these was virtually nil. This
was the gap we managed to fill.

The introduction of time and deadline in-
dicators for each of these activities, together
with the incipient introduction of certain in-
dicators of quality meant bringing the work-
ers nearer to the design of the system. Up
to this time workers had had no part in this
and there existed underlying problems of
motivation. This was one of the basic rea-
sons that lead the management to introduce
new procedures.

Once again, the experience of this case
brings to light evidence of the role of inter-
nal accounting information systems as
mechanisms for motivation and control ca-
pable of integrating knowledge dispersed
within the firm.

1 Alcatel, Grupo Aracil, Airline Industry, Chemical
One, Siemens Electric Motor Works, Jhon Deere
Components Works, Kanthal, Hewlett Packard, Sie-
mens, Tektronix, Chrysler, Perfumes Puig …

2 This study was requested by the firm itself, under
Section 1 of the University Reform Law.
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Conclusions

Summarising the role assigned to management accounting, ac-
cording to the theory proposed, as a strategic element capable

of influencing behaviour and increasing knowledge and innovation,
thus creating value in the firm, we can argue the following points :

i The information provided by management accounting allows a re-
duction in the asymmetry of information and uncertainty by facili-
tating a visualisation of processes and behaviour. By reducing its
asymmetric character, it limits ex-ante strategic behaviour, which
is manifested in the tendency of the parties to reveal false informa-
tion, thus permitting better use of resources, which in turn leads to
good cooperation. This information will be decisive if individuals
are to achieve better knowledge of the operations they perform
and to perfect the decision-making process, finally understanding
how the share of surpluses or losses may affect them.

ii Internal accounting information — through inclusion of pro-
spectively and retrospectively quantified indicators, of those
variables of the system of economic circulation, both quantita-
tive and qualitative, the firm wishes to encourage in order to
achieve proposed goals — signals the level of those variables
to be reached, and serves as a transmission guide of every-
thing that is essential for the development of the firm and in-
duces desired behaviour. Thus the need for the said indicators
to be in close connection with the strategic goals and for there
to be an adequate network to communicate the information.

iii It limits ex-post opportunist behaviour, thus avoiding dysfunctional
decisions, by using procedures, which permit information to be
obtained about effort and actions of the agent. At the same time,
it guarantees the contractual compensation of the principal. That
is to say, it guarantees fulfilment of the agreement and acts as a
system, which regulates incentives — monetary and non-mon-
etary. It therefore acts as a mechanism of supervision and guar-
antee of the behaviour of the two parties to the contract.

iv It makes it possible to introduce elements related to the behav-
iour of agents not incorporated in the contracts, but which could
affect them or affect other means of discretional compensation. It
therefore also acts as a mechanism of influence and motivation.

v It is useful to separate decision management from decision control.
This favours decentralisation of decision rights, encouraging their
location together with the knowledge relevant to decision-making,
thus improving the performance of the organisation.

The previous effects, coordinated with those originating from sys-
tems of incentives and assignation of decision rights, may decisively
influence acquisition, transmission and application of knowledge.

When introducing these systems, psycho-social aspects, related
with individual styles, interpersonal relations and intrinsic needs
must be considered.

The usefulness of management accounting as an instrument for global
control of processes and of behaviour is clearly reinforced by informal con-
trol mechanisms which forment participation in the exercise of decision
rights or, at least, in some of their phases — initiation, ratification, introduc-
tion and monitoring. The search for conditions to favour learning and, hence,
improve efficiency is made to this end. Techniques of training and partici-
pation are integrated. They feed the process of initiation and incitation to
action and then become translated into greater knowledge, making innova-
tion possible and favouring initiation in the decision process.

12
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A bility to get along with people is
 the prime attribute of a good
 manager. It is a necessity if he is
 to enjoy peace of mind.

Life cannot be lived in an impersonal way.
In manufacturing, transportation, trading,
finance and all other areas of production and
commerce, as well as in social life, we deal
with men and women — who are filled, as
we ourselves are, with feelings of pride, the
ambition to achieve, and the desire for es-
teem and affection.

No manager can do his best work or at-
tain notable success without the concur-
rence of other people’s endeavours. Facing
the human equation and solving it satisfac-
torily are urgent needs imposed upon lead-
ers in all walks of life. The competent leader
takes many precautions that lesser people
neglect.

To understand people demands, first of
all, we must admit to two truths : we are all
different, and often we are not aware in what
respect, to what degree, and why we are dif-
ferent : and we are all acting and reacting in

Employees give their most when a man-

ager inspires, motivates and listens. It is

easier to gain trust through kindness than

tyranny. This article first printed in 1954,

spells out the importance of establishing

solid human relationships in the work-

place — a basic management tool often

overlooked as we race towards meeting

deadlines and achieving corporate goals.

dif ferent environments.
When a person realises these truths he

is inclined to begin understanding people
by studying them. He will go out of his way
to encourage them to talk about themselves
and their interests. Only then can the man-
ager discover what makes employees un-
happy in their work, what qualifications
young workers have for advancement and
what mistaken ideas are prevalent in the
workplace that should be corrected.

No one in authority can ever do too much
listening : the best leaders know that peo-
ple prosper not in proportion as they inform
but as they elicit.

They take special pains to win the sup-
port and confidence of other people by pay-
ing attention to their special interests. It is
more important to know people’s thoughts
and to anticipate their reactions than to draw
up a semantically correct manifesto of the
firm’s aims and regulations. Able managers
and supervisors, whose skills in working
with people have been called uncanny,
merely are careful to watch for bits of evi-

“The ability to get along with

people is the prime attribute

of a good manager. It is a

necessity if he is to enjoy

peace of mind.”

First published in 1954 in The Royal
Bank of Canada’s Monthly Letter

Strategy
               in Working 
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can ever do too

much listening : the

best leaders know

that people prosper

not in proportion as

they inform but as

they elicit.”
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dence which others ignore.
But it is not enough to listen and observe;

one must examine and appraise. By look-
ing at the subject from the other person’s
viewpoint, you perceive the things that need
to be cleared away so as to let him see the
good points of your plan.

Those who go in for mottoes might add
this one to their list :

“Every human act can be understood if
we know all the pertinent facts.”

When we see a person whom we believe
we know very well acting in a manner that
is different from our expectations, we may
be shocked or confused. But we need not
rest there. By showing a sympathetic inter-
est, by demonstrating our desire to under-
stand, and by taking all the appropriate steps
toward becoming informed of the cause, we
may find what is wrong with the person —
or with our own interpretation of his actions.

We must be prepared to meet resistance,
if the attitude we seek to change is a deeply-
rooted one. We need to offer something
more concrete than generalities. If we take
the pains to think this out and elaborate our
thoughts and plans in clear consistency we
are likely to reap a reward beyond our
hopes.

Our clear-cut ideas can be presented so
as to demonstrate the undisciplined aspira-
tions and the prejudices of the person we
seek to influence, but they must be pre-
sented in terms of that person’s interests.
Lord Macaulay’s saying has the air of plati-
tude, but it conveys a lesson :

“It is not by his own taste, but by the taste
of the fish, that the angler is determined
in the choice of bait.”

COMMUNICATION OF IDEAS
To deal with people requires the commu-

nication of ideas; this is a two-way project.
Managers cannot possibly put across their
ideas unless they know what ideas are al-
ready in the minds of the workers — ideas
which may clarify or confuse, help or hinder.
Workers must understand what manage-
ment is trying to do before they can be
counted upon for enthusiastic support.

This means that management must be
crystal-clear in its own mind just what is to
be attempted, or the result will be confusion
and frustration. Napoleon wrote to his Gen-
eral Murat :

“You will so manage that the Spaniards
may not suspect the course I intend to
pursue. This will not be dif ficult, for I
have not fixed upon it myself.”

Time is needed to communicate ideas and
cultivate their growth. In view of the com-
plex conditions to which we human beings
must accommodate ourselves, and the
number of connecting ideas from which we
are compelled to choose, it is no wonder that
an effort to rush us into decisions should
antagonise us and rouse our opposition. The
miracle is that so many leaders, by taking
time and trouble, succeed in having their
ideas accepted.

The person who allows himself to appear

in a hurry gives himself a needless handi-
cap. The onlooker is likely to conclude that
the hurrying man has found his responsi-
bilities too big for him, and to decide that
he, for his part, is not going to be rushed
into a decision reached in an environment
of excitement.

ALL BUT LITTLE PEOPLE
None of us like to feel that we are being

told to do something : we prefer to feel that
we are acting on our own ideas, or that we
are thoughtfully agreeing with the ideas of
someone else. People who are adroit in
working with people have mastered the
method of giving instructions, proving a
point, or winning agreement in such a way

that those to whom they convey their ideas
feel they are their own.

The purpose of all but little people is not
to dominate but to inspire, not to strike fear
into men or women but to enlist their good-
will, not to gain a point by fighting but to
win support by making people want to get
behind the plan.

There comes, in every person’s life, a time
to fight, but it must be tested by asking : “Is
the cause worthy? Cannot I persuade rather
than compel? If I do win my point by force,
will the response be favourable among the
people who count in my life?” If there is no
other way to achieve a worthwhile purpose,
then it is necessary to ‘lay down the law’.
Dogmatism is a powerful device when jus-

“The purpose of all but little

people is not to dominate but

to inspire, not to strike fear

into men or women but to

enlist their goodwill, not to

gain a point by fighting but to

win support by making

people want to get behind

the plan.”
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tifiably used, but it is a fighting weapon, not
calculated to make friends.

To those who insist upon fighting their
way through life, having it in their nature to
do so, there are some points of strategy that
should be attended to. It was a principle
among the ancient Greek fighters not to cut
off the enemy’s retreat, because when bot-
tled up he would fight more desperately : in
our modern business life it is well to give
an opponent a chance to ‘save face’.

To beat a person down out of our sheer

joy in raising our ego at his expense is not
only a breach of good manners and sports-
manship, it is bad business, because there
are no persons so insignificant but may,
some time or other, have it in their power
to be of use to us.

Violence in a manager makes enemies
unless the people surrounding him are won-
derfully tolerant — something on which no
one has the right to count on. Violence takes
the toll on one’s health, too, wears one out
more rapidly than does persuasion, and it
is not so gratifying to the person of intelli-
gence. Persuasion, as Matthew Arnold put
it, is the only true intellectual process.

STRATEGY IN CRITICISM
Able people take pains to spare others

humiliation, even when it is necessary to
criticise their actions. It is foolish to scold.
John Wanamaker confessed :

“I have enough trouble overcoming my
own limitations without fretting over the
fact that God has not seen fit to distrib-
ute evenly the gift of intelligence.”

The purpose of discipline in business,
school or family life is to prevent repetition
of an offence. It should be constructive.
Impatient tearing down is likely to breed
distaste for necessary regulation.

Criticism should begin with praise and
honest appreciation of what the person does
well, and then goes on to point out how the
other thing can be done better. This mode
of criticising will appeal to the worker be-
cause it shows an honest desire to be help-
ful. It recognises the truth that nobody ever
learns anything except by making mistakes.
The better a person is, the more mistakes
he will make, because of the more new
things he will try.

Learning to like people and to get along
with them by looking for the good in them
is a satisfying way of life. If we complain of-
ten about our associates or about the firm
for which we work, people are likely to think
the trouble lies with us.

OTHER PEOPLE’S WANTS
One sure way of getting along with peo-

ple is to satisfy some of their wants. We can
be alert to notice and remember their
wishes and preferences. Every manager
knows that it is not suf ficient to give a
worker good wages and stable employment,
and comfortable working space : other,
more personal, needs must be met if the
working force is to be a contented, harmo-
nious and efficient team. To build other’s
feelings of self-respect, to give them the feel-
ing that they are respected : these are im-
portant techniques for the person seeking
to work with people.

How can we be of greater service to peo-
ple than by detecting their emotional dis-
turbances, quietly learning the cause, and
instilling confidence while helping toward
good adjustment? When you help someone
to be right you are satisfying one of his
greatest needs.

It is good strategy to be positive rather
than negative. People most willingly obey
those whom they consider most able to di-
rect, and they are most willing to follow
those with a positive way of doing things.
The manager who gives a worker a fine
reputation to live up to is thereby inspiring
him to do his best and to be part of the team,
participating rather than just working. It is
well, sometimes, to arrange a little triumph
for a worker, tempting him to try something
more difficult.

Look favourably on people’s motives. The
most unhappy person on earth is the one
who goes through life suspecting everyone
with whom he comes into contact of trying
to do him some ill turn. Friendships do not

Nobody ever learns anything

except by making mistakes.

The better a person is, the

more mistakes he will make,

because of the more new

things he will try.
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grow out of suspicion, nor is loyalty in a
working organisation built up of distrust.

There are times to concede and concili-
ate. He is a wise organiser who lets people
beat him a little in the discussion of some
plans he is trying to ‘sell’, so long as he
keeps the main issue clear and unspoiled,
and gives in to change of detail in order to
win principles.

One can often get done what one wants
done — the other person’s way. Joseph
Chamberlain, the British statesman, once
remarked :

“Much can be done by a concession
which, valued by the receiver, demands
little of the giver beyond perception of its
acceptability.”

Sometimes it is wise to retreat and await
a more favourable time.

“A pliable plant on a

riverbank, dipping its

branches into swiftly running

water, will save every twig

and leaf, whereas a stout

tree will be torn away. And,

having decided to yield, do

so with good grace.”

PERSONAL RECOGNITION
To enjoy good human relations we need

to recognise the craving of people for per-
sonal recognition. They desire prestige. By
giving them a sense of importance we at-
tract them to us, arouse their interest in our
ideas, and make them eager to help bring
our plans to fruition.

A true leader does not hog the limelight,
but draws friends and fellow workers into
it, thus inspiring them with enthusiasm and
loyalty. It is dangerous and unrewarding to
ignore subordinates. Charm, poise, person-
ality and efficiency — attributes of leader-
ship — all arise from a feeling of genuine
interest in people and thoughtfulness for
them.

The person who waits until trouble looms
with friends, customers, or colleagues be-

fore turning on his charm is making a mis-
take. Children will have temper tantrums,
feeling that it is better to be punished than
not to be recognised at all; adults will get
sick or go on strike in order that people will
pay more attention to them.

The person who sincerely satisfies our
hunger for recognition as individuals will
hold us in the palm of his hand.

A compliment, particularly on points
where we wish to excel and yet are doubt-
ful whether we do or not, is an effective way
to gain our goodwill, if the compliment be
true and not fabricated flattery. Nothing is
less laborious and irksome than to give
praise, and as the Duc de la Rochefoucauld
put it in his Maxims :

“To praise good actions heartily is in
some measure to take part in them.”

Flattery is quite unlikely to be effective
for a person whose only weapon it is. But
there is something distantly related that will
win friends and influence people your way :
it is to watch for opportunities and to com-
mend them sincerely on some act or tri-
umph or promotion, however little that is
to their credit.

Another way to give personal recognition
is by suggesting a point in such a way that
the idea seems to originate in the other per-
son’s mind. It must be presented in terms
of his experience.

If we take the gentle, the favourable, the
indulgent side of most questions, we retain
our poise under trying circumstances. Even
though we are bested in an argument, we
keep our self-respect, our feeling of being
on top and we win, too, the respect of our
opponents.

When we make mistakes we take the
wind out of the opposition’s sails by admit-
ting it quickly and emphatically. An out-
standing example is given by Lord
Macaulay in his History of England, when
Queen Elizabeth was challenged in grant-
ing of monopolies :

“she with admirable judgment
and temper declined the contest,
put herself at the head of the re-
forming party, redressed the griev-
ance, thanked the Commons in
touching and dignified language
for their tender care of the general
weal, brought back to herself the
hearts of the people and left to her
successors a memorable example
of the way in which it behooves a
ruler to deal with public move-
ments which he has not the means
of resisting.”

To praise good actions heartily is in some
measure to take part in them.
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FOUR VIRTUES
There are many virtues, but four are of

leading importance to the person seeking
to live and work successfully with people.
They are consistency, sincerity, courtesy,
and friendliness.

We feel more secure in our relationships
with consistent people, even though they
are always unreasonably demanding, than
we do with those who are reasonable part
of the time and unreasonable at other times.
We can learn how to deal with the person
who is consistent, even if he is consistently
wrong, but we are utterly incapable of de-
veloping a strategy for the person who is
guided by whims and notions.

Sincerity is important, because it de-
serves friends. You cannot talk your way
into friendship in social or business life. If
you are going to make friends, people must
recognise you as worthy of friendship.

It is not necessary that we should agree with
people on every detail, or that either party
should admit that the other is infallible in wis-
dom or justice, but each should be sure of the

historian, remarked :

“It is far less dif ficult to march up a steep
ascent without fighting than along a level
road with enemies on each side.”

Leadership has been written about for
thousands of years, and scores of books are
published every year giving advice about
how to become and remain a manager. Yet
all these years and words have found no sub-
stitute for these four virtues : consistency,
sincerity, courtesy and friendliness.

F O U R  V I RT U E S
to live and work successfully with people

CONSISTENCY

SINCERITY

COURTESY

FRIENDLINESS

SOME PRINCIPLES
In addition to the basic virtues, getting

along with people requires us to practise
certain principles, to use proven tactics. You
would not appoint a person to a managerial
position if he were more interested in the
question “Who is right?” than in the ques-
tion “What is right?”. The manager, super-
visor, or any person in a position of com-
mand over people, needs to be careful not
to allow personalities to corrupt principles.
Sometimes the manager is right; sometimes
the worker is right; sometimes both are
partly right; but both need to seek the pro-
cedure which will be most in keeping with
their desire for the best outcome.

The person who gets along with people

other’s sincerity, so that they feel free to work
out the problem for the good of both.

“A deep, great sincerity.” said Thomas
Carlyle in Heroes and Hero-Worship, “is
the first characteristic of all men in any
way heroic.”

DON’T IGNORE COURTESY
No one who aspires to getting along well

with people can afford to ignore courtesy,
which means being considerate of others
in little things. To refuse a request grace-
fully, to show respect for what others revere,
to treat even bores with consideration, to
be eager to do a favour, to be calm under
provocation and affable under pressure :
these are evidences of courtesy.

Courtesy is the easiest quality to lift one
above the crowd. Very often it is lacking in
any masterful quality, but in it abides a wist-
ful appeal that wins friends.

It is far more interesting to out-think an
opponent, to persuade a wife or a husband,
or to ‘sell’ an idea to the group of which you

“The person who gets along

with people avoids focussing

on their weaknesses rather

than on their strengths, or on

their disabilities rather than

on their abilities.”
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are the leader than to gain your way by bull-
dozing and throwing your weight.

Friendliness with a person means that you
have, over and above your general merit,
some particular merit to that person. It
means that even if you are not in a position
to benefit people materially you take pains
to oblige them and show your amiable spirit.

The person in search of success and
peace of mind needs friends. Xenophon, the

1

2

3

4
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Modesty prompts a person to refrain from
boasting of his success. When a person is
satisfied that he has succeeded in an effort,
he means that his striving for success is
over, and that marks him as a failure. Mod-
esty is self-defensive, too. Southey says, in
his Life of Nelson, that :

“the great admiral might have lived had
he not been so proud of his medals. They
drew snipers' fire upon him.”

Courage is needed in working with peo-
ple, but not braggart daring. The wise per-
son knows that in the olden days many
more thousands were killed in flight than
in battle, he also knows that there is a time
to retreat. As the philosopher said on giv-
ing up an argument with the Emperor
Adrian :

“I am never ashamed to be confuted by
one who is master of fifty legions.” When
his chief hit his slave Haji Baba on the
head, Haji boasted : “Though I rubbed

avoids focussing on their weaknesses rather
than on their strengths, or on their disabili-
ties rather than on their abilities.

Everybody has problems and everybody
is short-suited in some quality. The thing to
do is not to wail about these, but to do some-
thing positive to help solve them.

Practice of this sort means going beyond the
stark, necessary demands of business and so-
cial intercourse. It calls for willingness to go
more that half way in friendly overtures. It is a
practice that distinguishes the really great per-
son from the person who is merely adequate.

Great men and women are not quick to
take offence. They ascribe annoying acts and
sayings of colleagues and acquaintances to
defective knowledge, and merely observe
without feeling. They know that many criti-
cisms are made because making them gives
the critic a feeling of importance. They meas-
ure criticism by the value there is in it for
them as a guide to doing something better,
and not by the degree in which the criticism
hurts. Like swordsmen, they take on their
shields the thrusts they cannot parry.

PASSION DISPLACES INTELLECT
Self-control is necessary to successful

working with people. It is the first virtue
taught by Socrates, necessary to make the
other virtues effective. Not only does fall-
ing into a passion tend to make enemies
instead of friends, but it displaces intellect
and gives your adversary an advantage over
you. When one person is furious and the
other cool, onlookers are very likely to sup-
pose that the man who keeps his temper is
right, even though he is not.

In his novel The Laughing Man, Victor
Hugo writes :

“Wind, hail, the hurricane, the whirl-
wind — these are wild combatants that
may be overcome … but nothing is to be
done against a calm; it of fers nothing to
the grasp of which you can lay hold.”

The person seeking to work in harmony with
other people is modest and moderate. He does
not exceed what is necessary in discipline or
in praise, in strife or in entertainment.

There is a certain dignity attached to mod-
esty. As the Archbishop of Canterbury said :

“Dignity is many things, each in its right
place. It’s always unselfconscious. It is
being worthy of any given situation, in
its proper context.”
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“The person seeking to work

in harmony with other

people is modest and

moderate. He does not

exceed what is necessary in

discipline or in praise, in

strife or in entertainment.”

the sore place, I still could laugh at the
jokes of my chief.”

Successful human relations are essen-
tially the results of a complicated interplay
of these virtues and principles, but every
person must play the game within his own
particular environment and according to his
own personal qualities and ideals.

There will be understanding, non-under-
standing and misunderstanding in every hu-
man relationship of two or more people. The
art of working and getting along with people
lies in applying fundamentals of kindliness and
seeking understanding. It prompts us to allow
everyone the right to exist in accordance with
the character he has, whatever it turns out to
be. It leads us to conform where we cannot al-
ter, and to maintain our serenity when friends
and fellow workers seem perverse.

Note :  This article first appeared in The
Royal Bank of Canada’s publication, ‘Monthly
Letter’, in 1954 and reprinted in 1977.

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○
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H
e emphasised on the

‘strength of charac-

ter’ of a company di-

rector, which he

feels is often under-

mined by the temptations to

make quick money in the

business world. But he is op-

timistic about the future de-

spite current flaws in corpo-

rate governance.

Also the Vice-President of

the newly-formed Malaysian

Institute of Corporate Govern-

ance, Datuk Raj is no stranger

to people who are keen to im-

prove corporate governance in Malaysia. He

co-authored ‘The Company Director’s Guide-

book’ and is a regular speaker at many semi-

nars on corporate governance.

Datuk Raj is also known to the police in

the country, having served the police force

for 29 years. He was the Chief Police Of-

ficer (CPO) of Negeri Sembilan in the late

60s and is remembered for his prompt de-

cision to impose a 24-hour curfew soon af-

ter the 1969 May 13 bloody race riots broke

out in Kuala Lumpur, following the general

election then. He was the CPO of Selangor

when Kuala Lumpur was declared a ‘Fed-

eral Territory’.

The warm and friendly ex-police officer

has led and trained police officers in fight-

ing against the communists. He was the com-

mandant of the Royal Malaysian Police Col-

lege, and was instrumental in implementing

a plan for Sarawakian police officers to take

over all the senior appointments from the

British. He was also the Director of Manage-

ment for the Royal Malaysian Police for about

80,000 personnel before he retired.

Years after his retirement from the police

force, Datuk Raj is still advisor to the King

on the Pardons Board.

The distinguished career of Datuk Raj in

the police force could partly be discerned

from the book ‘The War Years’, authored by

him. The book was launched in 1995.

For his services and contributions to the

nation, Datuk Raj has been conferred seven

awards by state rulers and these include

Datoships from Selangor and Sarawak. He

  DAT U K  S E R I  J . J . R A J

F E AT U R E

From Managing Police Personnel to
Training Company Directors

Datuk Seri J.J. Raj (JR), 74, the Director-General of the Malaysian Institute of Directors
and a former police chief of Selangor and Negeri Sembilan, was candid and open about the

weaknesses of company directors at a recent interview given to Akauntan Nasional.

DATUK SERI J.J. RAJ,
DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE MALAYSIAN INSTITUTE OF DIRECTORS

has also received six awards

from the King, which include

the Johan Mangku Negara

(JMN).

Datuk Raj moved into the

private sector on his retire-

ment from the police force.

He had been adviser to the de-

velopers of Taman Tun Dr

Ismail and Director of Secu-

rity for the Rubber Growers’

Association. Currently he is a

Director of the Federal Insti-

tute of Technology and Chair-

man of the Guardian Mercan-

tile Agency Sdn Bhd. He be-

came a member of the MID in 1984 and in

1985, was elected a Vice-President. He has

been the Director-General of MID since

1989.

The interests of Datuk Raj know no

bounds. He has been a manager and an

official of the Malaysian Shooting Contin-

gents to 19 international sporting events

and his book on ‘50 Years of Shooting in

Malaysia’ will be launched in December

this year.

Datuk Raj also has his hands in charity

work. He is involved in six community serv-

ices and organisations. He is the Chairman

of Human Resources in the Malaysian Red

Crescent Society and is an executive coun-

cil member of the Malaysia Leprosy Relief

Association.
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Corporate Gover nance — the
process and structure used to
manage business and affairs of a
company with accountability —
has  been given a more serious
meaning since the recent action

by the Securities Commission (SC) to pros-
ecute several prominent businessmen for
having allegedly violated the basic princi-
ples of proper management.

It is a wake-up call for company directors
and their associated professionals who intend
to flout the laws for their own personal gains.

In fact, prior to these prosecutions, the
SC and the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange
(KLSE) had already done a lot of work to
remind directors to adopt good practices
and transparent procedures in managing
companies, to be ethical and honest in deals.
Laws and rules were tightened to curb in-
sider trading and conflict-of-interest deals;
but for some, legislation is a toothless tiger
until it is enforced with force and vigour.

Bad practices and abuse of power in some
companies had indeed caused company
shares to plunge and the whole stock mar-
ket to tumble, particularly in late 1997. They
had shaken investor confidence and that is
always hard to regain. Hence, understand-
ably, the SC — the ultimate watchdog of the
securities industry — had to act firmly to
restore public confidence.

The formation of a high-level government-
sponsored Finance Committee on Corporate
Governance, the publication of the Report
on Corporate Governance, and the recent
formation of the Malaysian Institute of Cor-
porate Governance (MICG) by six organisa-
tions, underscore the importance attached
to corporate governance by the authorities.

In line with the emphasis on good gov-
ernance, the government has also imposed
restrictions on directorships to ensure that
directors will be more focussed in manag-
ing companies. Individuals, who used to sit
on the board of countless companies, can
only be directors of 10 public listed compa-

nies and 15 non-listed companies now.
But it appears that only prosecutions can

make people sit up, at least to ask them-
selves whether they have knowingly or un-
knowing committed similar offences. With
these prosecutions and, reportedly more to
come, it is no longer easy for the bad hats
among directors to act according to their
whims and fancies just because they are
majority shareholders.

Thanks to the prosecutions, good corpo-
rate governance — a buzzword since the
onset of the financial crisis in July 1997 —
now no longer exists in abstract terms.

The Malaysian Institute of Directors
(MID), which has intensified its activities to
educate member directors on their duties
and responsibilities in line with the current
emphasis given to corporate governance, is
supportive of the government’s efforts to
weed out bad elements. Members of the in-
stitute are directors of major companies.

Datuk Seri J.J. Raj (JR), the Director-Gen-
eral of the MID since 1989, said at a recent
interview with Akauntan Nasional that with
the authorities mooting a plan to require di-
rectors to attend courses, Malaysia will have
better-managed companies in the near future.

 Following are excerpts from the inter-
view with Datuk Raj.

Question

What is the benchmark for an effective
director?

Answer

Number one (quality), he must be knowl-
edgeable and possesses knowledge of his
duties and responsibilities. Number two
(quality) is what you can’t buy and you don’t
learn from any university. It’s the strength
of character. An effective director must have
that force of character to say what he thinks
is correct at board meetings, not after the
meeting is over.

Then, there is the principle of ultra vires.
As a director, he must know what is within
the powers of the company and what is
within his/her powers to act. Before I be-
come a director, I must ask myself what the
company is all about.

Question

Is the guidebook for company directors
published by the MID still relevant?

Answer

The Malaysian Institute of Corporate Gov-
ernance is revising the guidelines together
with the Institute of Corporate Governance
in UK. We are also studying other countries’
code of ethics to see what’s best for our needs
here. But in general terms, what’s in The
Company Directors Guidebook (co-authored
by Datuk Raj) is good enough.

Question

Has the government done enough to pro-
mote good corporate governance?

More Effective Directors to Emerge from
Current Push for Corporate Governance

B Y  K A R E N  H O

The formation of a high-

level government-sponsored

Finance Committee on

Corporate Governance, the

publication of the Report on

Corporate Governance, and

the recent formation of the

Malaysian Institute of Corpo-

rate Governance by six

organisations, underscore

the importance attached to

corporate governance by

the authorities.
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Answer

I always go back to my principle there —
the internal strength. You don’t need new
laws and regulations. You have got to be self-
regulatory. The laws are all there. We al-
ready have the Companies Act, which is
very powerful. Then we have the Securities
Industries Act, the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act, Securities Commission Act,
KLSE listing requirements and Practice
notes. Then there is also the financial re-
porting requirements, and on top of all this
there are the Penal Code and the Anti-Cor-
ruption Act.

Question

But despite existing laws and regulations,
there are still a lot of bad practices commit-
ted by directors and the stock market is af-
fected by these.

Answer

That I agree with you. But there is a start
to be made. The government has made a
good start. So with the push by the Ministry
of Finance, KLSE and the MICG, many of
these things will be improved. But I still want
to go back to the strength of character. The
board can’t move if a director says : “My dear
Chairman, I can’t agree on this”. This is
where the independent director comes in.

Question

But how many people dare speak up at
board meetings?

Answer

This is a good question. But there is noth-
ing to be afraid of. There is a job to be done,
and you do it. I give you an example of my-
self. During the May 13 riots in 1969, I was
Chief Police Officer of Negeri Sembilan.
That night, the problem started at 4 o’clock
here and news spread like wild fire. Killings
in Kuala Lumpur were taking place, and one
happened in Seremban. When you are in au-
thority, you just act on what’s right. At that
time, there was no government; the elec-
tion was just over. I went over to the Yang
Di Pertua Negri and there I got the author-
ity to impose a 24-hour curfew. This is what
I mean. When you are in a position of au-
thority, you must do it. Otherwise, don’t do
it. Here, the same case applies for directors.
If you are not strong enough to say what
your conscience tells you at meetings, then
I am afraid you should withdraw.

If you disagree with what has been said,
you should make sure it’s placed on record.

Question

Will this endanger the outspoken direc-
tor as he could be thrown out of the board?

Answer

Yes. Directors are normally invited into the
board by their own friends. But training will
help … I have suggested that the Registrar of
Companies should have a list of prospective
independent directors. You can’t sack these
people if there is no solid reason. The board
should have some balance, avoid dominance
by single individuals. Directors must know
that they do not owe their allegiance to indi-
viduals but to the companies they serve.

Question

What do you think is Malaysia’s standard
of corporate governance?

Answer

I don’t believe we are that bad. The en-
forcement officers are doing a wonderful job.

Question

Are directors worried after the recent
prosecutions?

Answer

No, no. ‘Worried’ is not the word to de-
scribe their reaction. I suppose when they
see these court cases, they will ask whether
their establishments are okay and make
sure the same thing does not happen. But
with the current environment, I think things
will change.

In the next millennium, there will be great
social and cultural changes … We (the di-
rectors) will have to change our attitude and
get prepared for a new age of ethics.

We have about 4,000 (listed and non-listed)
companies here, and if each company has
four directors, this will mean having 16,000
present and new directors. The catalyst for
change is coming. With the accreditation
programme for directors coming in, I think
it will make a very big change. Directors may
have to undergo an X amount of hours of
training. By which time, they will be fully
prepared to take on public listed companies.

Question

What are the key issues in corporate gov-
ernance now?

Answer

Training and ethics. Directors have to
have a very good idea of general ethics.

Question

What are the more rampant abuses that
you see in directors?

Answer

 It’s what we see in the newspapers.

Question

The economy is recovering now. Do you
see less emphasis being placed on corpo-
rate governance along with the recovery? I

remember corporate governance was not
emphasised when the economy and the
stock market were enjoying a boom.

Answer

Oh, no, it’s the reverse. Corporate gov-
ernance has come to stay. It has been with
us for a long time. Previously it was a bit
dormant. But with the current emphasis, it
is the in-thing for the future. As the younger
generation moves in, you will find things
improve much more. Together with the ex-
perience of the older generation and the dy-
namism of the young and their training, we
should see a better improvement. I don’t
think we will go back to the old days.

What I personally would like to see is that
when someone is prosecuted and convicted,
there should be an immediate write-up on
what had gone wrong (so that others could
learn from the lesson). We should not wait
for case studies to be presented at seminars.

Question

What’s the Institute’s view on the move
by the government to limit directorship?

Answer

Originally, the MID was not happy when the
initial announcement restricted directors to five
public listed companies as we felt it would sti-
fle investment. But now with 10 (for public-
listed companies) and 15 (for non-listed firms),
we accept it. It will spread the cake out but will
not necessary improve corporate governance.

Question

What kind of corporate scenario can we
expect to see in the near future?

 Answer

The government is firm and sincere about
corporate governance … In five years’ time, I
visualise most of the directors would have
undergone a series of training sessions con-
ducted by the SC and KLSE. They will be
geared towards the enhancement of corporate
governance. People will be proud and say their
companies are running beautifully, and you
can’t point a finger at their companies.

But having said all this, I must say most
Malaysians do not want to contravene laws.

Don’t accuse Malaysians of being a cor-
rupted lot, just because of a few bad apples.
The great majority of Malaysians are law-
abiding people. This is a universal problem.
If you look very hard, other countries have
worse problems. All are human beings.

Karen Ho Wah Foon was the former
bureau chief of Bridge News in Kuala
Lumpur. She has also worked for the
Chinese Forbes Magazine and Reuters.
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T 
 he purpose of this study is to shed
 light on the use of annual reports
 by financial analysts in Malaysia :
 their reasons for using financial
 information, the perceived impor-

tance of various sources of information, and
the perceived importance of different parts
of information contained in the annual re-
port. The present study could be classified
as a preliminary study, which should serve
as a basis for further research regarding the
use of annual reports to selected users of
accounting information. Studies about this
user category could be of considerable im-
portance to accounting regulatory bodies
and professional bodies in order to identify
unfulfilled needs for information by a spe-

cific user group, or on the contrary, to iden-
tify unnecessary or unused information pro-
vided in the annual reports.

The rest of the paper is organised as fol-
lows :

n Section 1 briefly outlines a number
of related studies.

n Section 2 deals with the research
design.

n Section 3 presents the most impor-
tant research findings.

n Section 4 provides the conclusion
and suggestions for future research.

   T H E  U S E  O F  A N N UA L  R E P O RT S

F E AT U R E

The Use of

 ANNUAL REPORTS
    by Malaysian Financial 

 A Preliminary Survey

Annual reports represent one of the important sources of informa-

tion regarding the performance of a company. Users of corporate

financial information such as shareholders, bankers, financial

analysts and government normally use annual reports together with

other sources of information to evaluate the performance or the

creditworthiness of a company.

BY DR. AZHAR ABDUL RAHMAN, LECTURER, SCHOOL OF ACCOUNTING, UNIVERSITI UTARA MALAYSIA.

S E C T I O N  1

Related Studies
Prior studies on the use of annual reports

by several user groups have provided evi-
dence on the varying needs for specific in-
formation by a particular user group. Some
of the studies have merely focussed on one
particular user group such as investors or
private shareholders, [e.g. Baker & Haslem
(1973), Baker et al. (1977), Anderson
(1981), Courtis (1982), Abdelsalam (1990),
and Anderson and Epstein (1995)] while
other studies use several user groups as
their respondents [e.g. Chang et a1(1983),
Solas and Ibrahim (1992), Abu Nassar and
Rutherford (1996), and Karim (1995)]. The
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following paragraphs will briefly present
those important studies that have employed
financial analysts as one of the sur vey
groups.

A  cross-country study regarding the in-
  formation needs of users of corporate

annual reports was carried out by Chang et
al. (1983) which was based on a similar study
done by Chang and Most (1977). Three user
groups were surveyed using mail question-
naires composing of 4,000 individual inves-
tors, 900 institutional investors and 900 finan-
cial analysts in three countries — the US, the
UK and New Zealand. The respondents were
asked to evaluate the importance of eight
sources of information for investment deci-
sion, and also on each of the 12 parts of the
annual reports. They found that the financial
analysts rated the corporate annual reports
as the most important source of information
for investment decisions followed by pro-

spectuses and communications with manage-
ment. In contrast, advisory services, proxy
statements, newspapers and magazines had
the lowest ratings. In addition, the most im-
portant part of the corporate report was the
financial numbers — income statements,
balance sheets, and statement of changes in
financial position.

Vergoossen (1993) examined the use
and perceived importance of annual re-

ports by investment analysts in the Nether-
lands. The analysts were further catego-
rised according to their functions : invest-
ment adviser, portfolio manager, director/
head of department, and other functions.
From 10 sources of information, the most
recent annual report was considered to be
more impor tant than any of the other
sources of information. Communications
with management and interim reports were
ranked second and third respectively. Re-
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ports of other investment analysts, indus-
try statistics and annual reports of former
years have the lowest ratings, but are still
considered to be important by many invest-
ment analysts. With regard to the different
parts of the annual reports, out of 10 parts,
the consolidated income statement was con-
sidered the most important part, followed
by the consolidated balance sheet and the
footnotes. The auditor’s report and the re-
port of the supervisory board have the low-
est ratings by the analysts.

A nother study using financial analysts
 as the specific user group was con-

ducted by Karim (1995) in Bangladesh. Us-
ing a mail questionnaire survey, he found that
out of 11 sources of information, the top three
sources of information considered as most
important by the financial analysts were :

• annual reports.

• communications with management.

Analysts —
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• reports on annual general meeting.

The least important sources of informa-
tion were :

• advice of friends.

• tips and rumours.

• corporate press releases.

On the other hand, the three most impor-
tant parts of the annual report were :

• balance sheet.

• profit and loss statements.

• sources and application of funds statement.

and the three least important parts were :

• the chairman’s statement.

• directors’ report.

• pictorial statement.

In Malaysia, related studies using invest-
ment analysts as the specific user group

of corporate annual reports have been car-
ried out by Ahmad (1988) and Hassan and
Christopher (1998).

Ahmad (1988) carried out a mail question-
naire survey to solicit the opinions of invest-
ment analysts in Malaysia regarding the
importance of corporate annual reports as
a source of information for investment
analysis. Out of 10 sources of information,
he found that the investment analysts
ranked company annual reports as the most
important source of information for making
investment decision, followed by interim
reports and prospectuses. On the other
hand, the two sources of information ranked
in the last two places were newspapers and
business magazines, and tips and rumours.
Furthermore, 12 parts of the annual report
were also included in the questionnaire and
respondents were asked to rate them using
a five-point scale. The results showed that
the three most important parts of annual
reports to the analysts were :

• balance sheet.

• profit and loss account.

• notes to the accounts.

The three least important parts were :

• the auditor’s report.

• profiles of board of directors.

• profiles of the senior management staff.

Hassan and Christopher (1998) con-
ducted a mail questionnaire survey on a
sample of investment analysts in Malaysia
to elicit their opinions on the usefulness and
readership of cash-flow statements in com-
parison with other parts of the annual re-
ports. Using seven parts of the annual re-
ports, they found that the profit and loss
account was considered the most useful and
the most read section followed by balance
sheet and statement of cash flows.

Corporate Governance and
Disclosure of Information

The issue of corporate governance has
significant influence on financial reporting
as it promotes fairness, accountability and
transparency in disclosure of information
by corporate entities especially those clas-
sified as public listed companies. The Fi-
nance Committee on Corporate Govern-
ance issued a special report known as the
‘Report on Corporate Governance’ in Feb-
ruary 1999.

The Report provides the definition of cor-
porate governance as ‘the process and
structure used to direct and manage the
business and affairs of the company towards
enhancing business prosperity and corpo-
rate accountability with the ultimate objec-
tive of realising long term shareholder
value, whilst taking into account the inter-
ests of other stakeholders’. It also places the
primary responsibility of corporate govern-
ance on the board of directors [p. 12]. As
such, the board of directors also act as ‘the
leading player’ in ensuring that companies
provide the highest quality of disclosure of
information not only for the best interests
of the shareholders, but also for other
stakeholders.

With regards to quality of information, the
Report stresses that :

“the board should receive information
that is not just historical or bottom line
and financial-orientated but information
that goes beyond assessing the quantita-
tive performance of the enterprise and
looks at other performance factors such
as customer satisfaction, product and
service quality, market share, market
reaction, environmental performance
and so on …” [p. 71].

Although the statement only emphasises
on the right of the board of directors to re-
ceive such information, it should not be con-
strued that other parties are excluded from
having such information. It is the responsi-
bility of the board to make recommenda-
tions to the management of companies to
disclose information deemed useful and
beneficial for the interest of the general us-
ers.

The relationship between the board and
other stakeholders is also stated in the Re-
port that they must maintain an effective
communication policy that enables both the
board and management to communicate
effectively with its shareholders, stake-
holders and the public generally [p. 73]. As
such, the issue of corporate governance
plays an important role to ensure that com-
panies comply to the financial reporting
standards imposed by regulatory or profes-
sional bodies (such as the MASB, the MIA
or the MACPA) that would lead to full and
transparent disclosure of transactions that
would help to protect and assist sharehold-
ers and other report users.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

‘the process and structure

used to direct and manage

the business and affairs of

the company towards

enhancing business

prosperity and corporate

accountability with the

ultimate objective of

realising long term

shareholder value, whilst

taking into account the

interests of other

stakeholders’.
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group in determining the direction and flow
of investable funds and the process at which
shares are sold.

There are various methods that can be used
by financial analysts in analysing companies.
The four most common methods are :

• Fundamental analysis.

• Ratio analysis.

• Technical analysis.

• ß-analysis.

n Fundamental analysis generally focuses
on fundamental factors such as general busi-
ness conditions, industry outlook, earnings,
dividends, quality of management, et cetera.

n Ratio analysis is done by segregating the
financial reports into different components or
parts and the parts are evaluated in relation
to each other and to exogenous standards.

n On the other hand, technical analysis fo-
cuses on market-based factors such as share
price movements, charts and the like.

n Lastly, in ß-analysis, one analyses the re-
sponsiveness of the price of a particular
company’s share to changes in the value of
some market average.

However, the present study did not look
at the various methods used by investment
analysts in analysing companies’ perform-
ance. It only examines what information
provided in the annual reports is considered
to be useful in making business decisions,
for example in making decisions as to
whether to buy, hold or sell shares of a com-
pany.

The questions in the questionnaire have
been carefully designed to identify :

i the range of purposes for which re-
spondents use financial reports;

ii the relative position of annual reports
as a source of information compared
with other sources of information to
gather information about a company;
and

iii the relative importance of different
parts or sections in a company’s an-
nual report.

For the last two parts, the respondents
were asked to answer the questions using
a five-point scale (1 : not important at all, 2 :
less important, 3 : important, 4 : very im-
portant, and 5 : ‘very-very important’). The
analysis of responses will provide an insight
about the users’ general orientation and
their general information preferences.

150 questionnaires were distributed to fi-
nancial analysts who were employed in two
types of firms, namely stockbroking firms
and unit trust companies. 80 useable re-

sponses were obtained from the financial
analysts, which represent a response rate
of 53 per cent.

The main problem of the questionnaire
approach is the tendency to obtain a low
response rate, which is the result of non-
response bias. The presence of non-re-
sponse may indicate that the viewpoint of
non-respondents would be significantly dif-
ferent from those who responded, and this
may affect the validity of the results of any
research. Oppenheim (1992) suggested that
if one assumes that late respondents repre-
sent non-respondents, it is possible to de-
tect whether there is any non-response bias
in a sample. This can be done by compar-
ing one or more ‘variables of interest’ for
the k respondents of the last m weeks with
those of a random sample of k respondents
taken from the earlier weeks to examine if
there exists any significant difference be-

S E C T I O N  2

Research Design
Different research methodologies have

been employed in prior studies to examine
the use and perceived importance of annual
reports by financial analysts. In the current
study, the postal questionnaire survey was
selected because the objective of the study
was to obtain an overall picture of the finan-
cial analysts’ use and perceived importance
of annual reports. Using this type of survey,
a large number of the population can be
reached easily, and since the questions are
identical to all respondents, the findings are
to a large extent generalisable.

There are several reasons for choosing
financial analysts as the user group for this
study. The financial analysts are profes-
sional people who have the expertise in ana-

lysing the annual reports. The effective use
of a communication medium like the annual
report requires a level of decoding skill
which is usually possessed by stockbrokers,
financial analysts or accountants, who in
effect, function as investor opinion leaders.
In other words, the ordinary investors who
do not have an accounting background
would seek their advice for the purpose of
making an investment decision, for exam-
ple in deciding whether to buy, hold or sell
shares of a particular company. As such, the
responses from the financial analysts would
represent the views of the ordinary inves-
tors’ group. On the other hand, there are
also institutional investors who generally
control substantial number of shares in an
enterprise and these institutional investors
also rely on the advice of financial analysts
in making investment decisions. As such,
the financial analysts form the dominant
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tween the two sets.
In order to carry out the test, 10 respond-

ents were each chosen randomly from the
early reply sample, and also from the late
reply sample, respectively. A Mann-Whitney
test was carried out to identify any signifi-
cant difference (p   0.05) in the mean scores
between the two sets of responses for the
perceived importance of parts of the annual
reports. The test showed that there was no
significant difference in the mean scores for
all the parts. This indicates that the view-
point of the non-respondents would not have
been significantly different from that of the
respondents.

S E C T I O N  3

DATA ANALYSIS AND RESULTS
Purpose of Using the

Annual Report
Financial statements may be used for a

variety of reasons. In this study, the re-
spondents were asked to identify their pur-
poses of using annual reports. The question-
naire suggested nine probable reasons for
using such reports and respondents were
asked to choose as many as appropriate for
each of them. Table 1 shows the percentile
analysis by purposes.

From the table, 85 per cent of the respond-
ents mentioned that their main purpose of
using the annual report was to make deci-
sions on behalf of clients or their employer.
The second major purpose as represented
by 61 per cent was to advise clients; and the
third largest response shows that 58 per
cent of them use annual reports for the pur-
pose of making decisions about buying,
holding or selling shares in their private ca-
pacity. The ranking of the purposes accord-
ing to the overall response is given in col-
umn 1 in the parentheses. The three least
uses of annual reports were :

i to exercise discretion as government
official;

ii to negotiate trade agreement; and

iii to negotiate labour contract.

The reason for the lack of use of annual
reports to serve the above three purposes
is that the purposes are more appropriate
to government officials working in govern-
ment or statutory bodies rather than to the
present respondents who mainly work in
the private sectors.

Ranking of Various
Information Sources

Users can choose many sources of infor-
mation to know about a company. In order
to assess the relative importance of various
sources of information, the respondents
were asked to rate the perceived impor-
tance of 14 sources of information in mak-
ing their decision about a company. The
sources of information and the mean rating
score given for each information source are
presented in Appendix 1.

The number in parentheses (in column
seven) represents the ranking of scores for
each source of information. Based on the
mean scores, the table indicates that ‘visits
to companies’ was perceived to be the most
important source of information by the re-
spondents. Prospectuses and interim re-
ports are ranked the second and third re-
spectively. On the other hand, proxy state-
ments, tips and rumours, and advice of
friends have the lowest ratings.

Surprisingly, the annual report is only
ranked in the sixth place. This finding may
suggest that the annual report is just re-
garded as providing very minimum or ba-
sic information to the financial analysts. The
ranking of annual report after advisory serv-
ices, communication with management, pro-
spectuses and interim reports signifies the
growing demand by the user group for new,
updated, informal and timely information for

decision-making purposes. In this respect,
annual reports would seem to be lagging
behind in terms of timely information be-
cause it normally takes between four to
seven months from the accounting year-end
before it could be distributed to the share-
holders or to the public. The feedback from
some interviews with the financial analysts
revealed that they generally required more
information beyond the annual report for
analysis purposes.

Besides the 14 sources of information, re-
spondents were also asked to state other
sources of information, which they thought,
were useful and relevant to their decision-
making purposes. Only 11 responses were
given by the financial analysts. The respond-
ents mentioned that they normally used
other sources of information such as infor-
mation regarding share price movement
and industry or sector reports. An interest-
ing feature is that the financial analysts also
considered the views from their peers or
competitors or other analysts besides their
own personal judgment on the industry as
a whole in making investment decisions.
This may be reflected in many sectors or
industries where there is a group of ‘lead-
ing’ analysts who are followed closely by
other analysts. Although the responses are
limited in number, it provides valuable in-
formation regarding the use of other
sources of information by the user groups.

Purposes of Using Annual Reports by Financial Analysts

Purpose                            Financial Analysts

Number %

Make decisions on behalf of clients/employer (1) 68 85

Advise clients (2) 49 61

Buy/hold/sell shares in a private capacity (3) 46 58

Reading or academic interest (4) 31 39

Appraise social contribution of company (5) 9 11

Grant trade credit (6) 8 10

Negotiate trade agreement (7) 5 6

Exercise discretion as government official (7) 5 6

Negotiate labour contract (9) 1 1

T A B L E  1
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Importance of Different Parts
of the Annual Report

Companies’ annual reports contain a range
of information presented in a specified for-
mat, albeit in different manner, consisting of
qualitative and quantitative information. In
this study, 14 such parts or sections were
identified and included in the questionnaire
and respondents were asked to rate them
according to their perceived importance of
those parts using a five point scale from 1,
designating ‘not at all important’ to 5, ‘very-
very important’. The mean scores awarded
to each of the 14 parts by the respondents
are presented in Appendix 2.

The number in parentheses represents
(in column seven) the ranking of scores for
each part or section in the annual report.
From the table, it shows that the profit and
loss statement is perceived to be the most
important part of an annual report. The sec-
ond and third most important parts are the
balance sheet and notes to the accounts.
These three parts are regarded as an inte-
gral part of information in the annual report.
It is also interesting to note the other two

important parts of the annual reports that
are ranked in fourth and fifth place namely,
management forecast of expected profits for
the coming year, and the management dis-
cussion and analysis of operations of the
coming year. It seems that forward-looking
information is being increasingly regarded
as an important piece of information by the
financial analysts.

The three least important parts ranked
from 12th to 14th place are directors’ report,
auditors’ report, and pictorial statement.
The low importance placed on the two
former reports by the respondents may in-
dicate that the two sections of the annual
reports are just a formality and are well
taken care of by the auditor who audited the
company’s accounting records.

S E C T I O N  4

Summary and Conclusion
In this study, the results show that the fi-

nancial analysts use companies annual re-
ports for various purposes, the most cited
reason being to make decisions on behalf

of clients or employer and the least cited
reason being to negotiate labour contracts.
‘Visits to companies’ is considered by the
respondents to be the most important
source of information about a company,
whereas the annual report only ranks in the
sixth place. Furthermore, within the annual
report itself, the respondents rank the profit
and loss statement, balance sheet, and notes
to the accounts in the first, second and third
place respectively, in terms of their impor-
tance for decision-making purposes.

Since this study only covers a specific
user group, a potential limitation of this
study is the generalisability of its findings
to other user groups. It is hoped that fur-
ther research could be conducted to gather
empirical evidence on the importance and
usefulness of the annual reports from the
perspective of other user groups in Malay-
sia. Future research using a cross-country
comparison (e.g. in the Asian countries)
would provide further evidence on the use
and perceived importance of annual reports
by a specific user group.

Perceived Importance of Information Sources — Financial Analysts

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Information sources Not Less Important Very Very-very Total 1 Mean Standard

Important Important Important Important Rating Deviation

at all

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. % No. %

Advise of friends 24 30.4 27 34.2 20 25.3 5 6.3 3 3.8 79 100 2.190 (14) 1.06

Advisory services 1 1.3 4 5 15 18.8 36 45 24 30 80 100 3.975 (5) 0.90

Annual reports of companies 1 1.3 7 8.8 22 27.5 22 27.5 28 35 80 100 3.863 (6) 1.04

Communications with Mgmt 4 5 2 2.5 9 11.3 35 43.8 30 37.5 80 100 4.063 (40) 1.02

Corporate press releases 0 0 4 5 28 35 30 37.5 18 22.5 80 100 3.775 (8) 0.856

Government publication 3 3.8 12 15 22 27.5 24 30 19 23.8 80 100 3.550 (10) 1.12

Interim reports of companies 1 1.3 2 2.6 16 20.5 29 37.2 30 38.5 78 100 4.090 (3) 0.90

Business magazines 0 0 6 7.5 31 38.8 35 43.8 8 10 80 100 3.563(9) 0.777

Prospectuses 0 0 2 2.5 14 17.7 37 46.8 26 32.9 79 100 4.101 (2) 0.778

Newspapers 1 1.3 6 7.5 43 53.8 19 23.8 11 13.8 80 100 3.412 (11) 0.867

Proxy statements 11 15.1 12 16.4 29 39.7 17 23.3 4 5.5 73 100 2.877 (12) 1.10

Stockbrokers advice & reports 1 1.3 4 5.1 21 26.6 32 40.5 21 26.6 79 100 3.861 (7) 0.916

Tips and rumours 15 19 27 34.2 30 38 5 6.3 2 2.5 79 100 2.392 (13) 0.953

Visits to companies 1 1.3 3 3.9 7 9 27 34.6 40 51.3 78 100 4.308 (1) 0.887
1 The total number of respondents is 80 but some respondents did not provide answers to some of the questions requested. However, as the number of ‘no answer’ category
  was quite small, it did not significantly affect the statistical results.

A P P E N D I X  1
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Perceived Importance of Parts of the Annual Report — Financial Analysts

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Parts of Annual Report Not Less Important Very Very-very Total Mean Standard

Important Important Important Important Rating Deviation

at all

No. % No. % No. % No. % No. % No. %

Accounting policies 2 2.5 8 10 24 30 29 36.3 17 21.3 80 100 3.637 (9) 1.01

Auditor’s report 3 3.8 19 23.8 25 31.3 21 26.3 12 15 80 100 3.250 (13) 1.10

Balance sheet 0 0 1 1.3 4 5 25 31.3 50 62.5 80 100 4.550 (2) 0.654

Directors’ report 3 3.8 15 19 29 36.7 23 29.1 9 11.4 79 100 3.253 (12) 1.02

Chairman’s statement 3 3.8 16 20 30 37.5 19 23.8 12 15 80 100 3.262 (11) 1.06

Profit and loss statement 0 0 0 0 2 2.5 20 25 58 72.5 80 100 4.700 (1) 0.513

Notes to the accounts 0 0 3 3.8 6 7.5 23 28.8 48 60 80 100 4.450 (3) 0.794

Pictorial statements 7 8.9 19 24.1 36 45.6 11 13.9 6 7.6 79 100 2.873 (14) 1.02

Statement of changes in
financial positions 0 0 3 3.8 15 19 31 39.2 30 37.9 79 100 4.114 (6) 0.847

Statistical data or summary
of operations 0 0 2 2.5 25 31.3 25 31.3 28 35 80 100 3.987 (7) 0.879

MDA of operations of
preceding years 1 1.3 2 2.5 20 25 31 38.8 26 32.5 80 100 3.987 (8) 0.893

MDA of operations of the
coming year 0 0 3 3.8 16 20 23 28.8 38 47.5 80 100 4.200 (5) 0.892

MFEP for the coming year 0 0 2 2.5 13 16.3 27 33.8 38 47.5 80 100 4.262 (4) 0.823

Profiles of board of directors 5 6.3 10 12.5 26 32.5 24 30 15 18.8 80 100 4.308 (10) 1.12

MDA — Management discussion and analysis;  MFEP — Management forecast of expected profits
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176
Introduction

R 
 estructuring of companies involving

 schemes of arrangement are gov-

 erned by Section 176 of the Compa-

 nies Act, 1965. Section 176 provides

 that a company can enter into a com-

promise or arrangement with its creditors

or any class of them, or with its members

or any class of them without going into liq-

uidation. A company intending to embark

on a Section 176 scheme must make an ap-

plication to Court for directions to summon

meetings of creditors and or members as

the case may be. The meetings may be con-

vened by means of a written notice accom-

panied by an explanatory statement.

The schemes must be approved by a ma-

jority in number representing three-fourths

in value of the creditors or class of credi-

tors or members present and voting and

sanctioned by the Court. The order from

the Court sanctioning a scheme must be

lodged with the Registrar of Companies.

One of the attractions of invoking Section

176 to restructure companies is to seek the

power of the Court to restrain further pro-

ceedings in any action or proceeding against

the company except by leave of the Court.

At the height of the country’s financial cri-

sis, numerous public listed companies went

into Section 176 restructuring and sought

court protection by also applying for a re-

straining and stay order.

Many creditors particularly banks cried

foul and this led to amendments to Section

176(10) to ensure that creditors were aware

of an application made under subsection

(10) and to ensure that restraining orders

under that subsection were only granted un-

der specific conditions to avoid abuse.

Historically, companies that embarked on

Section 176 schemes relied on a strong

stock market and economy to successfully

implement their restructuring schemes. A

typical scheme would be to ask creditors to

convert their debts into shares and the com-

pany would arrange for pre-placement of

these shares so that creditors were fully

repaid when the shares were issued.

Alternatively, a special issue would be

made so that the proceeds from the special

issue could be used to fully repay creditors.

The shares issued were priced at par based

on the justification that these companies

were embarking on a rescue exercise. In

both of these arrangements, creditors were

assured of cash recovery and were more

amenable to proposals for partial waiver of

debts.

The placers/subscribers also benefited

and in most cases, astronomically from the

huge premiums earned from the listing of

the shares. The companies themselves also

gained from being able to exact from lend-

ers partial waivers of debts and to substan-

tially de-gear themselves. But alas, this ap-

proach is not workable in the present time.

Although the green shoots of recovery

are seen and sentiments and liquidity have

improved somewhat, it is unlikely that this

approach can be effectively applied to re-

structure financially troubled companies.

Creditors, particularly banks, remain averse

to shares unless they are fully underwrit-

ten — an impossible task in a market where

share underwriting capacity remains se-

verely limited. Whilst the KLSE has staged

a commendable upswing, overall senti-

ments have not improved to a level where

shares are readily acceptable for market

play as seen in the period preceding the fi-

nancial crisis.

Why has Section 176 Schemes
become Difficult to Implement?

In fact, the financial crisis, which has be-

set the country, has completely changed the

ways in which financially troubled compa-

nies should be restructured under Section

176 schemes of arrangement because of the

following reasons :

B Y  O N G  T E E  K I N

Historically, companies that

embarked on Section 176

schemes relied on a strong

stock market and economy to

successfully implement their

restructuring schemes.

Creditors, particularly banks,

remain averse to shares

unless they are fully under-

written — an impossible task

in a market where share

underwriting capacity remains

severely limited.
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• The KLSE, which historically was the pri-

mary source of take-out, has been rel-

egated to a position where creditors are

not prepared to accept shares as payment

of debts. Debt conversion schemes have

become difficult to implement and finan-

cial institutions generally prefer their

debts restructured into another form of

debt instrument rather than into shares.

• The conventional approach of seeking a

‘White Knight’ to inject profitable and

cash flow generating assets to turnaround

a financially troubled company may no

longer be workable. The magnitude of

companies’ financial problems in this cri-

sis is so huge that potential suitors with

profitable assets will be unable to max-

imise value by injecting these assets into

such companies. Potential suitors may

also be psychologically averse to compa-

nies with such massive debts.

• Creditors’ negative perception of the

economy and pessimism on the rate of re-

covery impose severe limitations on re-

structuring schemes.

• The weak financial state of the creditors

themselves, particularly banks, limit their

ability to accept options or arrangements,

which otherwise would be acceptable un-

der normal circumstances.

• The ailing companies generally do not

have controlling shareholders. In most

cases, the controlling shareholders would

have pledged their shares with financial

institutions or stockbroking firms and

these institutions would have either

forced sold those shares in the open mar-

ket or to Danaharta.

• Reluctance by financial institutions to pro-

vide share financing and underwriting fa-

cilities.

• Changes in provision of the Companies Act

governing the granting of Restraining Or-

der in relation to Section 176 schemes.

Why were Banks
Caught Off-Guard?

Many creditor banks were caught off-

guard when public listed companies went

into Section 176 restructuring. Many of

these companies had in their previous finan-

cial years posted strong profits and banks

had extended loans to these companies

based on the strength of their historical fi-

nancial statements. But once under court

protection and in the course of restructur-

ing, many of these companies started to

write-off/down substantial amounts of as-

sets to the extent that the balance sheet

showed a negative NTA.

The conventional approach

of seeking a ‘White Knight’ to

inject profitable and cash-flow

generating assets to turna-

round a financially troubled

company may no longer be

workable.

Bankers’ Reaction
Bankers’ reaction to a company going into

Section 176 restructuring is initially one of

distaste and when confronted with a situa-

tion where a borrower is unable to under-

write, pre-place or arrange for buyback of

shares or debt instruments arising from

conversion of their debts will demand a very

high degree of control over the borrower.

Covenants such as appointment of inde-

pendent monitoring accountants, board rep-

resentations, borrower’s undertaking not to

pay dividend during the tenure of the debt

instrument and not to enter into any busi-

ness ventures without bankers’ prior ap-

proval etc., will be imposed on the borrower.

Some of these covenants can become ex-

cessive and stifle the entrepreneurial

strengths of the management, which is an

important element in turning around a com-

pany. Bankers would need to strike a bal-

ance between imposing too many restric-

tions to protect their interests and provid-

ing sufficient flexibility for restructured

companies to carry on businesses without

undue interference.

No Best Solution
Bankers generally lack the resources and

experience to thoroughly evaluate a com-

plex restructuring proposal involving a
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By putting creditors interests

above that of the shareholders,

the pace of restructuring and

chances of acceptance by

creditors can be greatly

increased.

large group of companies. Their basic con-

cern is whether any proposed scheme is the

best the company in question can offer. To

address this concern, banks sometimes in-

sist on the appointment of an independent

firm of consultants to evaluate proposals put

forward by the borrower. But in practice,

there are so many variables in a restructur-

ing scheme, that it is quite impossible to em-

phatically conclude that a particular pro-

posed scheme is the best scheme a com-

pany can offer.

The Way Forward
The directors of public listed companies

in financial difficulty, must come to terms

with the fact that the depth and magnitude

of their financial problems are so great that

creditors have effectively more say over

their companies than they do. This subtle

shift in mindset will have a significant ef-

fect on the manner and speed in which a

company restructuring can be imple-

mented. Therefore, it is not a case of what

the company is prepared to give to credi-

tors; rather it is a case of acquiescing to

creditors’ demands.

Instead of coming up with a basic pro-

posal, which favours the company and/or

shareholders for discussion with creditors

and by degrees improving on the basic

model until consensus is reached, the com-

pany, should assume the role of a creditor,

in mind and spirit when developing a re-

structuring scheme. By putting creditors

interests above that of the shareholders, the

pace of restructuring and chances of accept-

ance by creditors can be greatly increased.

This may contradict conventional wisdom
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but the reality of the situation is that the

company’s ability to negotiate with creditors

is severely restricted when it lands itself

heavily in debt.

Meeting Creditors’ Expectations
The conventional approach in developing

a scheme of arrangement is to establish the

break-up value of a company and the returns

to the respective classes of creditors on liq-

uidation. A proposed scheme is then con-

ceived that offers creditors better returns

than what could be salvaged in the event of

the liquidation of a company. This is very

much a holistic approach and assumes that

creditors are rational creatures.

However, creditors may not react ration-

ally. One would have thought that if it were

shown that on liquidation the unsecured

creditors of the company would not be able

to recover anything and the company offers

a scheme that pays, say, 50 sen to a Ringgit,

such a scheme would appear reasonable and

would gain creditors’ acceptance. But many

such liquidation enhancement schemes

have not worked. Many creditors of public

listed companies are not concerned with liq-

uidation analysis, NTA, EPS or post restruc-

turing scenarios. They have preconceived

expectations of what constitutes the mini-

mum payback they are prepared to accept

and any scheme that falls below their ex-

pectation will be rejected. They are pre-

pared to wait it out until some other party

comes into the company to offer a scheme

that meets their expectations.

Diminished Importance of
Companies’ Fundamentals

Restructuring using Section 176 schemes

in the past, tend to be structured to meet

the stringent requirements of the Securities

Commission in terms of NTA, EPS and capi-

tal structure. A restructured company must

be backed by strong NTA value, acceptable

earnings with strong growth and a capital

structure with little accumulated loss. In

today’s context, these requirements are dif-

ficult to achieve because of the magnitude

of debts carried by companies and the re-

luctance of creditors particularly banks to

convert debt into equity and to accept waiv-

ers.

Debtor companies have to come up with

new instruments such as Exchangeable

Loans, Restructured Term Loans, Redeem-

able Loan Stocks — all of which, give banks

the option to convert into shares but remain

as loans until such time they are converted.

Even with massive capital reductions, the

company retains a huge accumulated loss.

Until the restructured loans are repaid or

converted, the gearing of the company re-

mains high. The company’s performance in

terms of NTA and EPS lose their theoreti-

cal importance in schemes of arrangement.

The concern will be whether the relevant

authorities will approve such schemes af-

ter creditors have given their approval.

Shareholders Bear the Brunt
The shareholders in Section 176 schemes

generally end up by comparison, far worse

of f than any class of creditors. Most

schemes of arrangement will call for a mas-

sive capital reduction. Although, in most

cases the loss is mitigated by the offer of

rights and warrants back to shareholders,

the average cost of investment after

factoring in the rights and warrants is still

high and shareholders are unlikely to re-

cover their cost of investment unless the

stock market stages a strong recovery.

Alternative Approach
The alternative approach would be to ap-

ply the old aphorism medicus curat, natura

sanat —Malaysian Ministry of Finance the

doctor treats, nature heals in restructuring

sick companies. The corporate doctor diag-

noses the problem, and then conceptualises

a restructuring scheme, which relies on the

company to turn itself around. His role is to

provide the sick company with the internal

and external conditions most favourable to

the exercise of its own self-regulative and

restorative powers.

This approach assumes companies like

any other organism have medicatrix natu-

rae — self-healing powers. When unfavour-

able conditions are made favourable, com-

panies tend to recover through their own

inherent powers of self-healing. The restruc-

turing consultant does not rely on any white

knight to save the company. He excises

parts that are cancerous, reorganises opera-

tions and develops a commercially accept-

able scheme for creditors and shareholders

based on what is left in the company. The

resultant scheme may not show impressive

NTA and EPS but will give the company suf-

ficient breathing space to manoeuvre and

sort itself out of its financial mess.

Conclusion
The final player in

the restructuring game

is the Securities Com-

mission. It would be in-

teresting to see in the

coming months how the Securities Commis-

sion reacts to Section 176 restructuring pro-

posals. If the Securities Commission pur-

sues a Darwinian policy of letting the me-

diocre and weak die and allow only the

strong to evolve into stronger entities, the

consequence may well be the demise of

many public listed companies.

Ong Tee Kin is a Consultant with

Horwath Nat Consulting.

The views expressed are those of the

writer and do not necessarily represent

the views of the firm.

Many creditors of public listed

companies are not concerned

with liquidation analysis, NTA,

EPS or post restructuring

scenarios.

A restructured company must

be backed by strong NTA

value, acceptable earnings

with strong growth and a

capital structure with little

accumulated loss.
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                                                       RM

Share Capital
Existing capital 50,000

Less : Capital reduction (40,000)

10,000

Add : Rights issue (5:1) 50,000

Issuance to unsecured

creditors 20,000

80,000

RCSLS conversion 40,000

120,000

ICULS conversion 40,000

160,000

Profit & Loss Account
P & L (150,000)

Waiver from unsecured

creditors 60,000

Cancellation of share capital 40,000

Restructuring expenses (1,000)

(51,000)

Year 1 profit 12,000

(39,000)

Year 2 profit 19,000

(20,000)

Cash Account
Balance before restructuring —

Rights issue proceeds 50,000

Payment to preferential

creditors (30,000)

Restructuring expenses (1,000)

19,000

Redemption of RCSLS (10,000)

9,000

Example of a Section 176 Scheme

A worked example of a company restructured under a Section 176 scheme is shown below :

Scheme Assumptions

1 Secured bank creditors’ debt was restructured into Redeemable Convertible Secured

Loan Stock (RCSLS) with an annual coupon rate of 10 per cent.

2 At the end of Year 1, RCSLS holders converted 40,000 RCSLS into shares and 10,000

RCSLS were redeemed by the Company.

3 33.3 per cent unsecured bank and trade creditors’ debts were converted into Irredeem-

able Convertible Unsecured Loan Stock (ICULS) after a waiver of 50 per cent. The

ICULS carry a 5 per cent coupon rate. The balance 16.7 per cent of unsecured debts

was converted into equity on the basis of RM1.00 of debt into one ordinary share of

Company A.

4 The ICULS issued are convertible into ordinary shares at par at the end of year 2.

5 A capital reduction of 80 per cent was effected after which a rights issue on the basis

of 5 new shares at par for every capital reduced share.

6 Preferential creditors were paid in cash.

7 Losses carried forward are assumed to be allowed for set-off of future taxable profits.

Balance Sheet – Company A

Year 0 Year 1 Year 2

Before

Restructuring
After Restructuring

Before

Conversion of Af ter Af ter

RCSLS & Conversion of Conversion of

ICULS RCSLS ICULS

RM RM RM RM

Assets 100,000 100,000 112,000 131,000

Cash 0 19,000 9,000 9,000

Secured bank creditors (50,000) — — —

Unsecured bank creditors (60,000) — — —

Unsecured trade creditors (60,000) — — —

Preferential creditors (30,000) — — —

RCSLS 10% (50,000) — — —

ICULS 5% (40,000) (40,000) — —

(100,000) 29,000 81,000 140,000

Share capital 50,000 80,000 120,000 160,000

P & L (150,000) (51,000) (39,000) (20,000)

(100,000) 29,000 81,000 140,000

NTA per share (2.00) 0.36 0.67 0.88

Projected profit/ loss after tax (4,000) 62,000 12,000 19,000

EPS (0.08) 0.78 0.10 0.12

Profit and Loss Account –
Company A

Year 1 Year 2

                                       RM            RM

Profit before tax

and interest 19,000 21,000

Less:

ICULS interest 5% (2,000) (2,000)

RCSLS Interest 10% (5,000) —

Profit after interest 12,000 19,000

Taxation — —

Profit after tax

and interest 12,000 19,000
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INTRODUCTION

Budget 2000, the first for the 21st Century, was crafted on the
back of a recovering economy. The Budget 2000 strategies

seek to :

• Continue the recovery through revitalising economic growth to
a level consistent with the growth potential of the nation.

• Strengthen further the competitiveness and resilience of the na-
tion to external risks.

• Transform services into a lead economic growth sector and
strengthen the development of the agriculture sector.

• Develop the human resource to enhance skills and knowledge.

• Extend social and public well-being programmes and environ-
mental preservation.

The ‘People’s Budget’, as it was termed, won the praises of many
as it was broad-based and comprehensive — impacting everyone.
Significantly, no new taxes were imposed. Instead, there were sev-
eral tax cuts, and a wide range of incentives for the business and

 B U D G E T  2 0 0 0

F E AT U R E

BUDGET 2000
 — Investing for the Future

The Minister of Finance I, YB Tun Daim

Zainuddin presented the ‘People’s Budget’ on 29

October 1999 at the National Parliament. The

popular and pragmatic Budget is pervasive in that

it will affect all aspects and levels of society, from

economics to environment, business community to

non-profit organisation, and youth to senior

citizen. Budget 2000, with its sound short-term

and longer term measures, will set the stage for a

full and firm economic recovery, as our country

enters the 21st Century marked by tough chal-

lenges and exciting possibilities.

B Y  R O B E RT  K H A W  A N D  J A N E T  L E O N G .

non-business communities. The tax cuts are expected to cost the
government RM1.1 billion in lost revenue, while salary adjustment
and increased housing allowance for civil servants will add another
RM1.3 billion to the government’s expenditure.

FISCAL STIMULUS TO CONTINUE

Given the weak state of the private sector during the economic
crisis, the government assumed the lead role of reviving eco-

nomic activities through expansionary fiscal and monetary poli-
cies.

The government has again opted for a deficit budget to continue
supporting economic recovery. The deficit, which could reach five
per cent of Gross National Product (GNP) in 2000, would not en-
danger the country’s external debt position. Considerable financ-
ing will come from non-inflationary domestic sources such as the
Employees Provident Fund. In addition, Malaysia’s external re-
serves are currently four times higher than the country’s short-
term external debt.

Nevertheless, prudent and efficient disbursement of public funds
is needed to ensure maximum benefits are derived for the country.
Also, public spending should be utilised prudently in productive
activities or projects that have great multiplier effects.

REINSTATING THE PRIVATE SECTOR
AS MAIN ENGINE OF GROWTH

Budget 2000 revealed that the government has no intention of
remaining in the driver’s seat. Indeed, it is actively goading

the private sector to lead the economy once again. In particular,
the emphasis is on increasing private sector investment and com-
petitiveness.
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  AC T I V I T I E S

I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

Sabah Branch Activities

On 19 September 1999, a mini safari
was organised by the Sabah
Branch. The committee members

and their families departed at 7.30 am for a
two hour drive before they arrived at Kota
Marudu (North of Kota Kinabalu) for a late
breakfast. After a brief tour of Kota Marudu

Sabah Branch Chairman giving a career talk on
accountancy to Kota Kinabalu High School students

town, the convoy left for Pitas where they
took a quick tour and enjoyed the experi-
ence of the ferry crossing. The participants
then headed back to Kota Marudu for lunch
at the town inn. By 2.00 pm, the convoy de-
parted for Kg. Tambatuan, using a route that
would give them a view of the back of Mount

Kinabalu. After another two hour drive, eve-
ryone was more than ready to enjoy the next
couple of hours swimming, jungle trekking
and hanging bridge crossing. The happy
and wear y bunch headed for home at
6.30pm.

Mini Safari

Career Talk MEETING : Every 2nd and 4th Thursday
of the month.

TIME : 8.00pm — 10.00pm

VENUE : Seminar Room, Northam EDU-Park
 Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
10050 Penang

CPD POINTS : 2 points per meeting

ENTRANCE FEE : MIA members — RM 190.00
Non-member — RM 210.00

SUBSEQUENT : MIA members — RM 130.00
SEMI-ANNUAL FEE Non-member — RM 150.00

REGISTRATION : Fan Kah Seong,
Vice-President — Membership
Tel : 04-227 6884
C.H. Loh Lim, Branch Secretariat
Tel : 04-229 4203

SPONSOR CLUB : YMCA Toastmasters Club of Penang
Sponsors : CL Peggy Khoo

CL Wong Loy Meng
Mentors : CTM Khoo Thean Huat

ATM (B) Grace Foo
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Sarawak Inter-Professional Games 1999

                      AC T I V I T I E S

              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

The Sarawak Branch led the organising of the
1999 Sarawak Inter-Professional Games which
started on 25 July and ended on 5 September

1999. The games saw 500 participants from 10 profes-
sional bodies comprising of Accountants, Lawyers,
Doctors, Engineers, Surveyors, Chemists, Agricul-
tural Scientists, Architects and Veterinarians, who
competed in five games — Badminton, Table Tennis,
Lawn Tennis, Bowling and Golf .

Although the Accountants did not win any of the
five games, the Inter-Professional Games were a great
opportunity for interaction among the local profession-
als and MIA in organising it, displayed good sports-
manship, organising and leadership skills.

The Sarawak Branch wish to extend its apprecia-
tion to the Committee members, especially, Mr. Si
Kiang Seng, Dr. Lee Bee Chai, Zaferi B.
Mohamad and all MIA Team Captains and Play-
ers for their contribution and support and for taking
part in the 1999 Games. YB Peter Nansian, Branch
Chairman is hopeful and confident that MIA Sarawak
can organise the 2000 Sarawak Inter-Professional
Games on a bigger and grander scale next year.

Introducing the

Protem Committee …

Ms. Chua Lian Chooi,
Mr. Fan Kah Seong,
Mr. Albert Yeoh,
Mr. Chan Choung Yau,
Mr. Chien Chee Man,
flanked by
Mr. Swee Weng and
Mr. Neoh Chin Wah

MIA (Northern Branch) Toastmasters Club
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I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

52

Sabah Branch Annual Dinner

The Guest-of-honour, Sabah Chief
Minister, Datuk Seri Panglima Osu
Haji Sukam, was represented by

Deputy Chief Minister cum Minister of In-
dustrial Development, YB Datuk Tham Nyip

Guests of honour at the VVIP table …
from left to right Sabah Branch
Chairman, Michael Y.S. Tong, Deputy
Chief Minister, YB Datuk Tham Nyip
Shen and MIA President, Dato’
Hanifah Noordin

Installation of MIA first
Toastmasters Club members,

by District Governor, Casey Leong
and headed by Ms. Alexandra Chin

The MIA Sabah Secretariat

celebrated its 32nd Anniversary

Annual Dinner and Show on

Saturday 31 July 1999.

Shen. Other honoured quests were MIA
President, YBhg Dato’ Hanifah Noordin,
Sabah Branch Chairman, Mr. Michael
Tong, Sabah Branch Vice-Chairperson,
Mrs. Alexandra Chin Thien, and organising
co-chairperson, Mr. Zainie Aucasa.

The evening began with a welcoming ad-
dress by Mrs. Alexandra Chin Thien and
Mr. Michael Tong, which was followed by a
multimedia presentation by Ms. Angeline
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New MIA Sabah Branch staff … from left to right, Ms. Freda Fung; Ms. Shirley Lee; Tawau Chapter Chairman, Ho Yun Kong
and wife; and Co-MC Angeline Wong

Presentation of the trophy to Ms. Ailean Yeap, winner of the 1999 Bowling Competition

                      AC T I V I T I E S

              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

Wong and dinner. The dinner saw the in-
stallation of chartered members of MIA
Sabah Toastmasters Club by Area Gover-
nor Datuk Casey Leong. Mrs. Alexandra
Chin Thien then gave a short speech as the
President of the newly installed club fol-
lowed by a short address to the guests by
MIA President YBhg Dato’ Hanifah
Noordin. Datuk Tham Nyip Shen presented
a speech on behalf of Sabah Chief Minister,
Datuk Sri Panglima Osu Haji Sukam, and
this was followed by the presentation of a
memento to the guest-of-honour and tro-
phies to the winners of the Annual Bowling
Competition and Annual Golf Tournament
which were held earlier this year. Local
singer, Nadia, then hogged the limelight
when she entertained the captivated audi-
ence of 400 people. The evening ended with
lucky draws.
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Towards Good
Corporate Governance

in Malaysia

On 3 November 1999, Council

Member Mr. Neoh Chin Wah

delivered a paper entitled, “To-

wards Good Corporate Governance in Ma-

laysia”, on behalf of the Institute’s Presi-

dent at the 1999 CEOs Conference organ-

ised by Disted Sowers Sdn Bhd in Hotel

Equatorial, Penang.

The presentation focussed on several

key corporate governance issues in Malay-

sia. The lack of good corporate governance

was cited as one of the contributory fac-

tors in the Asian financial crisis during

1997-98. In view of this, the importance of

good corporate governance was stressed

because of its crucial role in boosting in-

vestor confidence, and hence economic

recovery.

Further, good corporate governance is

needed to ensure that corporate objectives

are met, i.e. business prosperity, enhance-

ment of shareholders’ interest, as well as

interests of employees, customers and sup-

pliers.

But corporate governance should not be

viewed in an academic way. “Proper proc-

ess and structures are only as good as they

are on printed paper. They are only good if

the people governing the corporations are

good and committed to corporate govern-

ance. Corporate leaders must, therefore,

be fully aware of their calling and respon-

sibilities entrusted to them”, Mr. Neoh

stressed.

The presentation provided food for

thought for participants. “In the corporate

world, there are lots of temptations that one

will find them extremely dif ficult to resist.

What we need is a strong character.”

The talk also touched on directors’ heavy

responsibilities, as public expectation of

them is rising. The authorities such as the

Securities Commission and the Registrar

of Companies have stepped up their efforts

in taking to task directors who breached

the duties and regulations.

To educate directors of public-listed com-

panies, participants were informed that a

provision has been made for mandatory

training of directors. The training will

cover key areas such as directors’ legal

rights and responsibilities, Board opera-

tions, and the Malaysian Code of Corpo-

rate Governance, with the Kuala Lumpur

Stock Exchange driving the Director Ac-

creditation and Training programmes.

In addition, the need to ensure disclo-

sure of timely and quality information by

the Chief Executive Officers was empha-

sised. “If the companies’ operating system

is not able to generate such management

information, there is a need to review and

explore the enterprise resource planning

system. Accountants will be able to help

companies in this regard.”

The speech also touched on the comple-

mentary role of the internal audit function

in promoting good corporate governance.

“If companies do not have a sound inter-

nal control system, there is no assurance

that the accounts will be reliable.” Indeed,

internal auditors have an enhanced role to

play today, serving as business advisors or

consultants, apart from ensuring compli-

ance with rules and regulations.

Mr. Neoh concluded by saying that the

“current episodes in the newspapers tell

us that dishonesty does not pay.” Indeed,

there is a dire need for professionally com-

petent corporate leaders of character. The

feedback on the presentation showed that

it was well-received.
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              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

MIA/MIT Council Members Briefing the
Press on Expectations of the Budget 2000

Budget 2000 Hotline Service

Mr. Quah Poh Keat Mr. Harpal Singh Dhillon

Mr. Lee Yat Kong Mr. Veerinderjeet Singh
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 C A R E E R  TA L K S

 S T U D E N T S ’  N E W S

On the 13th September and 2nd October 1999, the Education Department conducted an
in-house Career Talk at the Institute to two groups of students hailing from Johor.

MIA In-house Career Talk

The first group that came were un-
dergraduates pursuing their second
year degree of Bachelor of Account-

ing at the Universiti Teknologi Mara,
Segamat, Johor. The second group of stu-
dents were undergraduates pursuing their

Diploma course with Kolej Islam Yayasan
Pelajar Johor (an affiliated college with the
Institut Teknologi, Shah Alam, Selangor).

The students were excited on the vast
career opportunities that were available to
them and they were also briefed on the vari-

ous aspects of the career paths and aca-
demic requirements to become full-fledged
accountants. At the end of the talk, the stu-
dents expressed eagerness and determina-
tion to be part of the accountancy profes-
sion.

Students from UTM, Segamat Branch listening attentively during the talk

A Career Talk at the Institute
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Sabah Branch Activities

On 19 September 1999, a mini safari
was organised by the Sabah
Branch. The committee members

and their families departed at 7.30 am for a
two hour drive before they arrived at Kota
Marudu (North of Kota Kinabalu) for a late
breakfast. After a brief tour of Kota Marudu

Sabah Branch Chairman giving a career talk on
accountancy to Kota Kinabalu High School students

town, the convoy left for Pitas where they
took a quick tour and enjoyed the experi-
ence of the ferry crossing. The participants
then headed back to Kota Marudu for lunch
at the town inn. By 2.00 pm, the convoy de-
parted for Kg. Tambatuan, using a route that
would give them a view of the back of Mount

Kinabalu. After another two hour drive, eve-
ryone was more than ready to enjoy the next
couple of hours swimming, jungle trekking
and hanging bridge crossing. The happy
and wear y bunch headed for home at
6.30pm.

Mini Safari

Career Talk MEETING : Every 2nd and 4th Thursday
of the month.

TIME : 8.00pm — 10.00pm

VENUE : Seminar Room, Northam EDU-Park
 Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
10050 Penang

CPD POINTS : 2 points per meeting

ENTRANCE FEE : MIA members — RM 190.00
Non-member — RM 210.00

SUBSEQUENT : MIA members — RM 130.00
SEMI-ANNUAL FEE Non-member — RM 150.00

REGISTRATION : Fan Kah Seong,
Vice-President — Membership
Tel : 04-227 6884
C.H. Loh Lim, Branch Secretariat
Tel : 04-229 4203

SPONSOR CLUB : YMCA Toastmasters Club of Penang
Sponsors : CL Peggy Khoo

CL Wong Loy Meng
Mentors : CTM Khoo Thean Huat

ATM (B) Grace Foo
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Sarawak Inter-Professional Games 1999

                      AC T I V I T I E S

              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

The Sarawak Branch led the organising of the
1999 Sarawak Inter-Professional Games which
started on 25 July and ended on 5 September

1999. The games saw 500 participants from 10 profes-
sional bodies comprising of Accountants, Lawyers,
Doctors, Engineers, Surveyors, Chemists, Agricul-
tural Scientists, Architects and Veterinarians, who
competed in five games — Badminton, Table Tennis,
Lawn Tennis, Bowling and Golf .

Although the Accountants did not win any of the
five games, the Inter-Professional Games were a great
opportunity for interaction among the local profession-
als and MIA in organising it, displayed good sports-
manship, organising and leadership skills.

The Sarawak Branch wish to extend its apprecia-
tion to the Committee members, especially, Mr. Si
Kiang Seng, Dr. Lee Bee Chai, Zaferi B.
Mohamad and all MIA Team Captains and Play-
ers for their contribution and support and for taking
part in the 1999 Games. YB Peter Nansian, Branch
Chairman is hopeful and confident that MIA Sarawak
can organise the 2000 Sarawak Inter-Professional
Games on a bigger and grander scale next year.

Introducing the

Protem Committee …

Ms. Chua Lian Chooi,
Mr. Fan Kah Seong,
Mr. Albert Yeoh,
Mr. Chan Choung Yau,
Mr. Chien Chee Man,
flanked by
Mr. Swee Weng and
Mr. Neoh Chin Wah

MIA (Northern Branch) Toastmasters Club
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Mr. Si Kiang Seng, Peter Chong and Richard Poh … joint winners of the
overall games
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Sabah Branch Annual Dinner

The Guest-of-honour, Sabah Chief
Minister, Datuk Seri Panglima Osu
Haji Sukam, was represented by

Deputy Chief Minister cum Minister of In-
dustrial Development, YB Datuk Tham Nyip

Guests of honour at the VVIP table …
from left to right Sabah Branch
Chairman, Michael Y.S. Tong, Deputy
Chief Minister, YB Datuk Tham Nyip
Shen and MIA President, Dato’
Hanifah Noordin

Installation of MIA first
Toastmasters Club members,

by District Governor, Casey Leong
and headed by Ms. Alexandra Chin

The MIA Sabah Secretariat

celebrated its 32nd Anniversary

Annual Dinner and Show on

Saturday 31 July 1999.

Shen. Other honoured quests were MIA
President, YBhg Dato’ Hanifah Noordin,
Sabah Branch Chairman, Mr. Michael
Tong, Sabah Branch Vice-Chairperson,
Mrs. Alexandra Chin Thien, and organising
co-chairperson, Mr. Zainie Aucasa.

The evening began with a welcoming ad-
dress by Mrs. Alexandra Chin Thien and
Mr. Michael Tong, which was followed by a
multimedia presentation by Ms. Angeline
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New MIA Sabah Branch staff … from left to right, Ms. Freda Fung; Ms. Shirley Lee; Tawau Chapter Chairman, Ho Yun Kong
and wife; and Co-MC Angeline Wong

Presentation of the trophy to Ms. Ailean Yeap, winner of the 1999 Bowling Competition

                      AC T I V I T I E S

              I N S T I T U T E  N E W S

Wong and dinner. The dinner saw the in-
stallation of chartered members of MIA
Sabah Toastmasters Club by Area Gover-
nor Datuk Casey Leong. Mrs. Alexandra
Chin Thien then gave a short speech as the
President of the newly installed club fol-
lowed by a short address to the guests by
MIA President YBhg Dato’ Hanifah
Noordin. Datuk Tham Nyip Shen presented
a speech on behalf of Sabah Chief Minister,
Datuk Sri Panglima Osu Haji Sukam, and
this was followed by the presentation of a
memento to the guest-of-honour and tro-
phies to the winners of the Annual Bowling
Competition and Annual Golf Tournament
which were held earlier this year. Local
singer, Nadia, then hogged the limelight
when she entertained the captivated audi-
ence of 400 people. The evening ended with
lucky draws.
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Towards Good
Corporate Governance

in Malaysia

On 3 November 1999, Council

Member Mr. Neoh Chin Wah

delivered a paper entitled, “To-

wards Good Corporate Governance in Ma-

laysia”, on behalf of the Institute’s Presi-

dent at the 1999 CEOs Conference organ-

ised by Disted Sowers Sdn Bhd in Hotel

Equatorial, Penang.

The presentation focussed on several

key corporate governance issues in Malay-

sia. The lack of good corporate governance

was cited as one of the contributory fac-

tors in the Asian financial crisis during

1997-98. In view of this, the importance of

good corporate governance was stressed

because of its crucial role in boosting in-

vestor confidence, and hence economic

recovery.

Further, good corporate governance is

needed to ensure that corporate objectives

are met, i.e. business prosperity, enhance-

ment of shareholders’ interest, as well as

interests of employees, customers and sup-

pliers.

But corporate governance should not be

viewed in an academic way. “Proper proc-

ess and structures are only as good as they

are on printed paper. They are only good if

the people governing the corporations are

good and committed to corporate govern-

ance. Corporate leaders must, therefore,

be fully aware of their calling and respon-

sibilities entrusted to them”, Mr. Neoh

stressed.

The presentation provided food for

thought for participants. “In the corporate

world, there are lots of temptations that one

will find them extremely dif ficult to resist.

What we need is a strong character.”

The talk also touched on directors’ heavy

responsibilities, as public expectation of

them is rising. The authorities such as the

Securities Commission and the Registrar

of Companies have stepped up their efforts

in taking to task directors who breached

the duties and regulations.

To educate directors of public-listed com-

panies, participants were informed that a

provision has been made for mandatory

training of directors. The training will

cover key areas such as directors’ legal

rights and responsibilities, Board opera-

tions, and the Malaysian Code of Corpo-

rate Governance, with the Kuala Lumpur

Stock Exchange driving the Director Ac-

creditation and Training programmes.

In addition, the need to ensure disclo-

sure of timely and quality information by

the Chief Executive Officers was empha-

sised. “If the companies’ operating system

is not able to generate such management

information, there is a need to review and

explore the enterprise resource planning

system. Accountants will be able to help

companies in this regard.”

The speech also touched on the comple-

mentary role of the internal audit function

in promoting good corporate governance.

“If companies do not have a sound inter-

nal control system, there is no assurance

that the accounts will be reliable.” Indeed,

internal auditors have an enhanced role to

play today, serving as business advisors or

consultants, apart from ensuring compli-

ance with rules and regulations.

Mr. Neoh concluded by saying that the

“current episodes in the newspapers tell

us that dishonesty does not pay.” Indeed,

there is a dire need for professionally com-

petent corporate leaders of character. The

feedback on the presentation showed that

it was well-received.
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MIA/MIT Council Members Briefing the
Press on Expectations of the Budget 2000

Budget 2000 Hotline Service

Mr. Quah Poh Keat Mr. Harpal Singh Dhillon

Mr. Lee Yat Kong Mr. Veerinderjeet Singh
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On the 13th September and 2nd October 1999, the Education Department conducted an
in-house Career Talk at the Institute to two groups of students hailing from Johor.

MIA In-house Career Talk

The first group that came were un-
dergraduates pursuing their second
year degree of Bachelor of Account-

ing at the Universiti Teknologi Mara,
Segamat, Johor. The second group of stu-
dents were undergraduates pursuing their

Diploma course with Kolej Islam Yayasan
Pelajar Johor (an affiliated college with the
Institut Teknologi, Shah Alam, Selangor).

The students were excited on the vast
career opportunities that were available to
them and they were also briefed on the vari-

ous aspects of the career paths and aca-
demic requirements to become full-fledged
accountants. At the end of the talk, the stu-
dents expressed eagerness and determina-
tion to be part of the accountancy profes-
sion.

Students from UTM, Segamat Branch listening attentively during the talk

A Career Talk at the Institute
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Commenting on the drafts, Sir Bryan Carsberg, Secretary-Gen-

eral of IASC, indicated :

“These three new proposals provide guidance on several

issues which have arisen in practice and are, therefore, a

welcome contribution to enhancing the consistent applica-

tion of our Standards.”

SIC D19, Reporting Currency — Hyperinflationary

Economies

The SIC agreed that although an enterprise that is domiciled

in a hyperinflationary economy normally reports using the

currency of the country in which it is domiciled, it may

choose to report in a different currency. Additionally, if an enter-

prise issues financial statements which are described as comply-

ing with IAS, the enterprise should not change its reporting cur-

rency for the purpose of inclusion in another enterprise’s financial

statements through consolidation, proportionate consolidation, or

equity method accounting. However, an enterprise that uses a par-

ticular reporting currency in financial statement that is not de-

scribed as complying with IAS may use a different reporting cur-

rency in its IAS financial statements.

SIC D20, Equity Accounting Method — Recognition

of Losses

The SIC agreed that for the purpose of applying IAS 28.22,

the carrying amount of the investment in an associate

should include common shares and preferred shares that

provide unlimited rights of participation in earnings or losses and

a residual equity interest in the associate. If the investor’s share of

losses of an associate exceeds the carrying amount of the invest-

ment, recognition of further losses should be discontinued, unless

the investor has incurred obligations to satisfy obligations of the

associate that the investor has guaranteed or otherwise commit-

ted, whether funded or not. Financial interests in an associate which

are not included in the carrying amount of the investment are ac-

counted for in accordance with other applicable International Ac-

 I A S C

I N T E R N AT I O N A L  N E W S

The Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) on 30 September 1999, published three new Draft Inter-

pretations to clarify accounting issues under International Accounting Standards. The Draft Interpreta-

tions are available both in hard copy format and also on their Web Site. Comments should be submitted

in writing by 30 November 1999.

IASC’s Standing Interpretation Committee (SIC)
Issues Three Draft Interpretations

The Draft Interpretations are:

• SIC D19, Reporting Currency — Hyperinflationary

Economies

• SIC D20, Equity Accounting Method — Recognition of

Losses

• SIC D21, Income Taxes — Omnibus

Commenting on the new Draft Interpretations, Paul Cherry,

Chairman of the Standing Interpretations Committee, said :

“Enterprises typically chose the currency to be used in pre-

senting their financial statements based on the underlying

economics of their business. The draft interpretation on re-

porting currency clarifies that while an enterprise in a

hyperinflationary economy has the same choice of reporting

currency that any other enterprise has, once a reporting cur-

rency is used in the separate financial statements of an en-

tity, inclusion of that entity in another enterprise’s financial

statements through consolidation, proportionate consolida-

tion, or equity method accounting does not justify the use of

a different reporting currency. This is particularly important

for enterprises that report in the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy as they must restate their financial statements based

on current price levels.”

Paul Cherry continued: “The draft interpretation on equity

method accounting addresses the issue of recognising losses

of an associate when an enterprise holds various types of

financial interests in the associate. Issues addressed include

identifying which type of interests are considered part of the

investment in an associate and are reduced for losses of the

associate, whether other interests are reduced for losses of

the associate once the investment in the associate is reduced

to nil, and the consideration of impairment. Finally, the draft

interpretation on income taxes addresses two separate issues:

the measurement of deferred taxes relating to revaluation’s of

non-depreciating assets and the recognition of tax effects of

a change in the tax status of an enterprise or shareholder.”
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The International Accounting Standards Committee on 5 August 1999, published an Exposure Draft of pro-

posed Standards of Accounting for Agricultural activity, a matter not covered in a prior International Account-

ing Standard. Agricultural activity is the management of the transformation of living animals and plants

(‘biological assets’) into agricultural produce awaiting further processing, sale, or consumption or into addi-

tional biological assets. The proposed effective date is financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2001.

is profit or loss measured on the traditional historical-cost

basis, which recognises no profit until a sale takes place.

In the case of livestock and timber, that could involve many

years. Reliable measures of the fair values of biological

assets and agricultural produce at the point of harvest are

available. Moreover, because of the allocations that would

be required in an agricultural context, our Board concluded

that cost-based measures are often of questionable reli-

ability and usefulness. For example, what is the cost of a

newborn calf or an apple ready for harvest?”

“Australia is the only country with comprehensive account-

ing standards for agriculture,” the Secretary-General noted.

“The proposals in E65 are substantially similar to those

adopted in Australia.”

IASC Proposes Fair Value Accounting for Agriculture

Exposure Draft E65, Agriculture, proposes that:

• all biological assets be measured at fair value;

• all agricultural produce at the point of harvest be meas-

ured at its fair value; and

• the change in fair value of biological assets be reported

in net profit or loss.

IASC Secretary-General, Sir Bryan Carsberg, explained that :

“in the Board’s judgment, the change in fair value of bio-

logical assets is a more relevant indicator of the perform-

ance of an enterprise engaged in agricultural activities than

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

counting Standards, for example IAS 39, Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement. Additionally, continuing losses of

an associate should be considered objective evidence that financial

interests in that associate may be impaired. Impairment of the car-

rying amount of financial interests is determined based on the car-

rying amount after adjustment for equity method losses.

SIC D21, Income Taxes — Omnibus

T his draft interpretation addresses two topics related to the

 accounting for income taxes.

         On the first topic, the SIC agreed that the deferred tax li-

ability of asset that arises from the revaluation of non-depreciable

property, plant and equipment is measured based on the tax conse-

quences that would follow from recovery of the carrying amount

of that asset through sale, regardless of the basis of measuring the

carrying amount of that asset. Accordingly, if the tax rate applica-

ble to the taxable amount derived from the sale of the asset differs

from the tax rate applicable to the taxable amount derived from

using the asset, the former rate is applied in measuring the de-

ferred tax liability or asset.

The second topic relates to a change in the tax status of an enter-

prise or of a shareholder that has consequences for an enterprise

by increasing or decreasing its tax liabilities or assets. The SIC

agreed that a change in the tax status of an enterprise or its share-

holders does not give rise to increases or decreases in the pre-tax

amounts recognised directly in equity. Therefore, the current and

deferred tax consequences of a change in tax status should be in-

cluded in net profit or loss for the period, unless those consequences

relate to transactions and events that result, in the same or a differ-

ent period, in a direct credit or charge to the recognised amount of

equity. Those tax consequences that relate to changes in the rec-

ognised amount of equity, in the same or a different period (not

included in net profit or loss) should be charged or credited di-

rectly to equity.

Printed copies of Draft Interpretations SIC-D19, D20 and D21 will

be mailed to subscribers to IASC’s ‘SIC Interpretations Subscription

Package’ and to subscribers to the IASC ‘Comprehensive Package’

services. The SIC publications include a loose-leaf binder containing

Draft and Final SIC Interpretations, the SIC Operating Procedures,

a member list and other additional information.

Detailed information on subscription services and on ordering sepa-

rate copies of these Draft Interpretations can be obtained from IASC’s

publication department, 166 Fleet Street, London EC4A 2DY, United

Kingdom. Telephone : +44 (0171) 427-5927, Fax : +44 (0171) 353-

0562, e-mail : publications@iasc.org.uk
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E65 does not deal with further processing of agricultural pro-

duce after harvest — processing grapes into wine, wool into

yarn, ageing of cut tobacco or meat, and so on. Those are

regarded as ‘manufacturing’ activities to which accounting stand-

ards for inventories would apply.

The IASC proposal would not establish any special accounting

standards for agricultural land. Rather, it would require that IAS

16, Property, Plant and Equipment be followed. IAS 16 allows agri-

cultural land to be carried either at cost subject to a write-down for

impairment or at fair value. E65 proposes, further, that biological

assets that are physically attached to agricultural land (for exam-

ple, crops and trees) be recognised and measured at fair value sepa-

rately from the land.

If a government grant is received in respect of a biological asset

carried at fair value, under E65 the grant is recognised as income ini-

tially if it is unconditional, or as a liability until the conditions are met.

Under the transition proposal in E65, on initial adoption of the

Standard an enterprise may choose one of two transition options :

a) apply the new Standard retrospectively (unless the amount of

the prior period adjustment cannot be reasonably determined),

reflect any adjustment to the previous carrying amount of bio-

logical assets and agricultural produce as an adjustment of re-

tained earnings, and restate comparative information (unless im-

practicable); or

b) apply the new Standard retrospectively (unless the amount of the

prior period adjustment cannot be reasonably determined), reflect

any adjustment to the previous carrying amount of biological as-

sets and agricultural produce in net profit or loss for the period,

and not restate comparative information (but present restated prior

period data on a pro forma basis unless impracticable). The dead-

line for comments on the proposal is 31 January 2000. IASC plans

to conduct a field test of the proposals in the Exposure Draft.

Copies of IASC’s Exposure Draft, E65, Agriculture, (ISBN 0 905625

74 9), may be obtained directly from IASC’s Publications Depart-

ment, 166 Fleet Street, London EC4A 2DY, United Kingdom, Tel-

ephone : +44 (171) 427-5927, Fax : +44 (171) 353-0562, e-mail :

publications@iasc.org.uk   Web Site : http://www.iasc.org.uk at a price

of £10 each (US $17), including postage.
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Is Oil Palm no longer the Golden Crop?
BY T.  J .  TAN

62

Palm Oil
40%

Soya Oil
13%

Other
Vegetable Oils

47%

World Vegetable Exports

T 
he stunning collapse of the

 market earlier this year amid
   surging Malaysian output, plus

     stif fer competition from Soya
  oil and other vegetable oils in
   the vital Indian and Pakistani
  markets, bids by India and Pa-
  kistan to grow their own oil palm

crops, rising competition from Indonesia and
possibly lower imports by China, are read in
some quarters as signals that Malaysian
palm oil faces an uncertain future.

But there is a danger we are losing sight
of the broader picture. Palm oil, which was
Malaysia’s biggest commodity export last
year, still has vast potential. Rising world
population — there are now six billion peo-
ple on this planet — means bigger demand
for palm oil. The oil palm is being genetically
modified to produce more oleic acid to cre-
ate more palm olein and for use as an
oleochemical — five years after the US be-
gan to produce genetically modified Soya
beans and rapeseed commercially. It is also
being engineered to produce bio-degradable
plastics and can be turned into diesel if the
price is right. Palm oil is a rich source of vi-
tamin A and the cancer-fighting tocotrienols.

The world is becoming more dependent
on palm oil and less on other edible oils to
feed its growing population. Palm oil has
overtaken Soya oil to account for 40 per cent
of world vegetable oil exports. It is 13 per

suffer from a chronic lack of energy. Accord-
ing to experts, annual demand for edible oil
in India, the world’s biggest buyer of veg-
etable oils, could expand by 5-6 per cent an-

nually. CII-McKinsey, a consultancy
firm, expects India’s food business,
par ticularly poultr y and baker y

products, to experience phenomenal
growth over the next seven years.

India now has 42,000 hectares of irri-
gated land planted with oil palm, yield-

ing up to 30 tonnes of fruits (or six tonnes
of crude palm oil) per hectare annually. It
hopes that one million hectares will be
planted with oil palm by 2020, producing up
to four million tonnes of crude palm oil. The
government pays farmers 16,000 rupees per
hectare to take up oil palm planting and pro-
vides free fertilisers during the first three
years and other incentives. India is turning
to oil palm because of lack of suitable land
for expanding rapeseed, sunflower and
groundnut cultivation.

India has been buying Malaysian palm oil
heavily since August after prices fell to their
lowest level this year. In September, it
bought 303,020 tonnes of Malaysian palm
olein, accounting for 35 per cent of total
exports. In August, India’s State Trading
Corp (STC) and private sector traders pur-
chased 325,691 tonnes, or 32 per cent of
exports. Buying for October also appears
to be buoyant. India is buying ahead of the
Hindu Deepavali festivities in November.

But because of abundant Malaysian sup-
ply, India is becoming very price sensitive.
In late September, the STC passed on a buy-
ing tender because it deemed the prices too
high. For shipment in early October, for
example, the selling price was US$445 per
tonne, cif. It had sought 36,000t of palm olein
for shipments in October.

Malaysian stocks are above the critical 1
million tonne mark, and the harvest is likely
to edge higher before falling in November
and December on seasonal factors.
Malaysian output could surge 20 per cent

cent for Soya oil. In many developing coun-
tries, palm oil is fast replacing Soya oil in
people’s diet thanks to aggressive market-
ing. Palm oil is finding new markets in Cen-
tral Asia, South America and South
Africa, where red palm oil —
unprocessed or specially refined palm
oil — has been added to biscuits to
combat vitamin A deficiency in children.

Red palm oil — it contains an anti-
oxidant and precursor of vitamin A
known as beta-carotene — has also been
shown to be effective in combating vitamin
A deficiency in children in India, where un-
der nutrition in this vitamin and other mi-
cro-nutrients such as iron and iodine re-
mains a major problem. Researchers at
Andhra Pradesh Agricultural University
have found that beta-carotene in red palm
oil was quickly absorbed and converted to
vitamin A in the body. The fat in palm oil
facilitates the uptake of beta-carotene in the
stomach.

The antioxidant benefits of palm oil are
being exploited by a US company after stud-
ies showed that tocotrienols — a type of vi-
tamin E produced from palm oil — could
inhibit growth of breast cancer cells in mice.
Researchers at Washington State University
say tocotrienol is also present in rice bran
and wheat bran oils, but in lower concen-
trations than palm oil.

The Archer Daniels Midland Co. plans to
manufacture tocotrienols as a new product
for the growing nutritional and supplemen-
tal market. It says : “A number of worldwide
scientific studies have shown that
tocotrienols are efficient antioxidants that
can fight free radical damage, improve cho-
lesterol levels and cardiovascular circulation
and retard the initiation and growth of cer-
tain types of cancers.”

Although India is trying to grow its own
oil palm, its imports of palm oil should ex-
pand, given its growing population and the
fact that the country still has a very low per
capita intake of oils and fats and many there
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put is slated to expand to seven million
tonnes in 2000 from 5.9 million this year. It
is aggressively turning land-rich Irian Jaya
into its biggest producer of palm oil. Malay-
sia is countering the threat by staying ahead
in R&D.

A lesser threat comes from Papua New
Guinea, the world’s third largest palm oil
producer after Malaysia and Indonesia. The
PNG government and its partner, the Lon-
don-based Commonwealth Development
Corp, expect to increase total area under cul-
tivation by 50 per cent over the next five
years. Palm oil is fast challenging coffee as

the country’s leading agricultural export.
The UK is the leading importer of PNG’s
palm oil, but sales are increasing to other
important EU markets, such as Germany
and Italy.

In order to develop its oilseeds-crushing
sector, China has reduced the amount of
palm oil allowed to be imported to 700,000
tonnes in 1999-2000 (April-March) from 1.1
million tonnes previously. However, it may
permit the import of an additional 500,000
tonnes following appeals from Prime Min-
ister Mahathir Mohamad during a visit
there in August.

T.J. Tan is a regular contributor to the Finan-
cial Times, London and Newsweek magazine.
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to a record 10 million tonnes this year as
trees recover from the effects of the El Nino-
related drought in 1997.

Indian demand is currently buoyant be-
cause palm oil is competitively priced
against Soya oil. For example, nearby con-
tracts of palm olein cost US$430 per tonne,
cif basis Indian port, compared with US$420
for crude, degummed Soya oil. Because it
is already refined, Indian importers will pay
up to US$50 more for palm olein.

Indian buying has enabled December fu-
tures on the Malaysian commodities and
monetary exchange to climb to RM1,280 a
tonne in early October from about
RM900 in late July, close to the
cost of production. The price fall
prompted the government to per-
mit tax-free exports of crude palm
oil to the EU, which buys most of
the product from Indonesia.
Malaysian cost of production is
about RM850-900 a tonne.

Pakistan is also planting oil
palm with seedlings imported
from Malaysia and Sri Lanka
along the coastal areas of Sindh
and Baluchistan provinces to
lessen its dependence on im-
por ted edible oils. Pakistan’s
Oilseed Development Board has
signed an agreement with the
Palm Oil Research Institute of
Malaysia (PORIM) for the sup-
ply of germinated palm oil seeds
and provision of consultancy
services to Pakistan. PORIM is engineer-
ing the oil palm to produce more oleic acid
in order to create more palm olein, the main
type of refined palm oil purchased by such
important buyers as India and China
and used as cooking oil.

A mono-unsaturated fatty acid, oleic
acid is found in large quantities in ol-
ive oil, which has shown an ability to
ward off heart disease in Mediterra-
nean countries. PORIM hopes to raise
the oleic acid content from 39 per cent to
more than 80 per cent. This will lower the
melting point and allow palm oil, which
clouds at low temperatures, to be sold as
salad oil in cold countries.

Oleic acid is also useful as an oleochemical

— chemicals derived from oils and fats and
used as industrial feedstock and in the food
industry — demand for which is growing
rapidly. Malaysia is becoming the world’s
leading oleochemical centre.

Oleochemicals derived from palm oil will
help meet future shortages. The supply of
lauric oil, which is derived from coconuts and
palm kernel and is the traditional source of
oleochemicals, is limited. Rapeseed has been
engineered to produce more lauric oil, but
the crop is not as high yielding as oil palm.

PORIM and the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology hope to engineer the oil palm

to produce biodegradable plastics. Scien-
tists at Stanford University in California
have successfully modified Arabiodopsis
Thaliana, the laboratory model plant to pro-

duce the chemical.
Of the world’s oil crops, oil palm

has the greatest potential for the
commercial production of bio-degradable
plastics, as it is the most efficient pro-

ducer of vegetable oil per hectare.
Oil palm is also being modified to pro-

duce more stearic acid for use as cocoa but-
ter substitute to make chocolates and per-
sonal care products, such as lotions, shav-
ing cream and rubbing oils.

Expanding Indonesia’s output poses a
threat to Malaysian palm oil. Indonesian out-

Land being
prepared for a

palm oil estate.
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The salient points of the BNM guide-
lines No. JPI/GPI 19 issued on 20
July 1999 are as follows :

A related-party transaction refers to the
transfer of assets or liabilities, or the per-
formance of services by, to or for a related
party irrespective of whether a considera-
tion is given. Related-party transactions in-
clude but are not confined to :

i Extension of credit facilities.

ii Purchases, sales or exchange of shares
or assets.

iii Guarantees or undertakings.

iv Property rentals.

v Management and service agreements
including arrangement for the sharing
of resources.

vi Agency agreement.

vii Reinsurance arrangements.

viii Settlement of inter-company balances
including payments in kind for insur-
ance coverage.

ix Dividend payments and other distri-
bution to shareholders (if payments

PRESS RELEASES/GUIDELINES

Bank Negara Malaysia
Bank Negara Malaysia (BNM) Guidelines dated 20 July
1999 — Guidelines on Related-Party Transactions

involve transfer of insurance funds to
related parties and controlling share-
holders or directors can substantially
influence amounts distributed).

Among the requirements that apply to
related-party transactions are :

a) Full disclosure of the nature and extent
of all related-party transactions (irre-
spective of amounts involved) shall be
made to the insurer’s board of directors.

b) All material related-party transactions
shall be subject to approval of the board
i.e. an amount per transaction/contract
exceeding the lower of RM250,000 or
one per cent of the insurance fund sur-
plus determined at the end of the pre-
ceding financial year.

c) An insurer shall notify and obtain ap-
proval from BNM of any proposed pay-
ment of dividends (both interim and fi-
nal) which exceeds the greater of :

• 10 per cent of its insurance funds sur-
plus at the end of the current  finan-
cial year, or

• the net profit for the current financial
year.

d) Prior approval of BNM is required for
purchase or sale of property between
insurer and its related party.

e) Insurers are not permitted to accept
payment for insurance premiums from
any party in any form other than cash
or cash equivalents except with prior ap-
proval of BNM.

f) Cost allocated by related party to in-
surer for sharing common resources
shall be determined on actual incurred
basis or using a fair and measurable
basis for allocation.

Required :

1 BNM required insurers to table full
contents of the said Guidelines at their
next immediate Board meetings after
the issue of the same by BNM.

2 In addition, a statement of disclosure
shall be submitted to BNM in the pre-
scribed form, signed by the CEO and
a non-executive Director providing in-
formation on all related-party transac-
tions which :

• are material; or

• involve a total consideration exceed-
ing RM1 million in aggregate.

This statement shall be submitted to
BNM three times a year in conjunction with
the Company’s statutory annual returns and
the quarter returns for the period ending.

Securities Commission
Press Release on ‘Securities Commission (SC) allows
flexibilities for variations to profit guarantee, sets

conditions to protect investors’ dated 30 September 1999

The SC announced that it will allow
flexibilities for variations to profit
guarantee agreements but will im-

pose conditions to ensure that investors’ in-
terests are upheld.

Flexibilities
Arising from industry feedback and re-

quests, the SC has reviewed requirements
on variations to profit guarantees and has
decided to allow flexibilities for :

• applications submitted after the close
of the financial year end; and

• applications involving the variation of the
first year’s profit guarantee obligation.

These applications are now allowed if the
guarantors can demonstrate that they do not
have the financial capability to fulfil the
profit guarantee obligation. For such cases,
the guarantors are allowed to vary the profit
guarantee agreement only if the variation

involves compensating the Company/share-
holders for the profit shortfall and not a vari-
ation to the guaranteed sum or an extension
of time in fulfilling the obligation. The com-
pensation can take the form of payment of
the profit shortfall by instalments or by way
of issuance of new securities.

Investor Protection Conditions
Additionally, the SC has introduced condi-

tions that are meant to uphold investors’ in-
terest, in the event that variations to profit
guarantee are proposed. In this respect, guar-
antors who opt to vary the tenure of the profit
guarantee period or the guaranteed sum
must now provide a security margin equiva-
lent to at least 120 per cent of the original
guaranteed annual maintainable profit as
stated in the prospectus of the Company.
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The security arrangement shall be in the
form of deposit of quoted securities with an
independent stakeholder and the guaran-
tors are required to maintain this level of
security margin at all times until their profit
guarantee obligations are fully discharged.

For cases where the guarantors propose
to issue new securities, the guarantors are
now required to adhere to a restriction in
sale of their existing shareholdings in the
Company from the date the announcement
of the variation is made until one month af-
ter the listing of the new securities.

The above flexibilities and requirements
are effective immediately and are additions

   U P DAT E S

C O L U M N S

to the SC’s existing requirements on varia-
tions to profit guarantee agreements, which
shall remain in force. The new requirements
on security margin based on the original
guaranteed annual profit will not however
apply to cases which have been previously
approved by the SC. Full details on the new
flexibilities and requirements will be con-
veyed to the advisers and affected parties
in due course.

Procedures
All new proposals must be announced at

least one month before the close of the fi-
nancial year-end in question and the SC will

only accept applications for variation if they
are submitted to the SC within three months
from the announcement of the variation by
the Company. Companies which have made
an announcement to vary the profit guaran-
tee agreements prior to the date of this
press statement (30 September 1999) but
have yet to submit the applications to the
SC are allowed a grace period of three
months, from that date, to submit their ap-
plications through their advisers.

Directors and guarantors are reminded
that any applications to vary profit guaran-
tee agreements should be undertaken in the
best interest of the Company.

Press Release on ‘Listed Corporations to ensure that financial
statements comply with approved accounting standards’ dated
21 June 1999

○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○ ○

The SC announced that the Securities
Industr y (Compliance with Ap-
 proved Accounting Standards)

Regulations 1999 came into force on 18 June
1999. These regulations apply to the finan-
cial statements or accounts of listed corpo-
rations for the financial period ending on or
after 30 June 1999.

The regulations are intended to enhance
the quality of information disclosed by listed
corporations in their financial statements
and to ensure that accounting standards is-
sued by the Malaysian Accounting Stand-
ards Board (MASB) are strictly complied
with. This is in line with the Commission’s
developmental ef for ts to bring about
greater accountability, transparency and
better corporate governance in the interests
of investor protection.

These regulations require every listed
corporation, its directors and chief execu-
tive to prepare and present its financial state-
ments in accordance with approved account-
ing standards. The ‘approved accounting
standards’ referred to above are accounting
standards, which are issued by the MASB
under subsection 7(1) of the Financial Re-
porting Act 1997.

As a matter of policy the Commission has
decided that the term ‘financial statements’
is to encompass the following:

a) balance sheet.

b) income statement.

c) a statement showing either :

i all changes in equity; or

ii changes in equity other than those aris-

ing from capital transactions with own-
ers and distributions to owners.

d) cash-flow statement; and

e) accounting policies and explanatory notes.

In addition, every director of a listed cor-
poration shall ensure that the accounts of
the corporation when laid before the annual
general meeting are made out in accordance
with approved accounting standards. Fail-
ure to comply with these regulations is an
offence.

In the event of any failure to comply with
approved accounting standards, the Com-
mission may direct a listed corporation, its
directors or chief executive :

• to rectify the relevant financial statements
or accounts in order to ensure compliance
with approved accounting standards;

• to provide relevant undertakings to the
Commission with regard to compliance
with the approved accounting standards;
or

• to make such announcement as the Com-
mission deems fit in relation to the non-
compliance or the rectification required.

Where the Commission has issued a di-
rection to a listed corporation to rectify the
relevant financial statements or accounts,
the listed corporation, its directors or chief
executive, as the case may be, shall submit
the rectified financial statement or accounts
to the Commission. The rectified accounts
may also be provided to any person as the
listed corporation, its directors or chief ex-
ecutive deems fit. Failure to comply with any

direction of the Commission or breach of
an undertaking provided by the listed cor-
poration, its directors or chief executive is
an offence under the regulations.

In ensuring compliance with accounting
standards, the Commission will actively ini-
tiate scrutiny of the financial statements of
listed corporations. The aim of the Commis-
sion in this regard is to secure quality finan-
cial information. For this reason, enforce-
ment by the Commission will be carried out
initially through active discussions and vol-
untary agreement on the type of remedial
actions to be taken by affected corporations.

However failure by the relevant corpora-
tions, directors or management to address
deficiencies in their financial statements after
all these consultative processes will result in
the Commission taking appropriate actions
against the listed corporations, its directors
or management as permitted by law. Such
recourse will be sought where the Commis-
sion arrives at the conclusion that non-com-
pliance has occurred and that the corporation
has failed to provide an acceptable explana-
tion for the non-compliance or that the corpo-
ration has failed to take the relevant remedial
actions stipulated by the Commission.
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Legislation Updates
Securities Industry (Compliance
with Approved Accounting Stand-
ards) Regulations, 1999

These regulations are applicable to fi-
nancial statements and accounts of
listed corporations for the financial

period ending on or after 30 June 1999. The
details are as above.
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MASB Issues for Comments, a New Exposure Draft
(ED) and Two Draft Statements of Principles (DSOP)

ED 16 : Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E). This

standard will supersede MASB Approved Account-

ing Standard IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

issued by the Malaysian professional accountancy

bodies.

Summary of ED16 :
PP&E should be recognised when :

(a) it is probable that future benefits will flow from it, and

(b) its cost can be measured reliably.

Items of PP&E should initially be measured at its cost. Subse-
quently, the benchmark treatment is to use depreciated (amortised)
cost but the allowed alternative is to use an up-to-date fair value.
Subsequent expenditure relating to PP&E should be capitalised
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure should be recognised
as expense.

The ED states that an enterprise should assess at each balance
sheet date if there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If an asset’s recoverable amount falls below its carrying amount,
the decline should be recognised and charged to income (unless it
reverses a previous credit to equity). Gains or losses on retirement
or disposal of an asset should be calculated by reference to the
carrying amount.

The ED does not apply to forests and similar regenerative natu-
ral resources and mineral rights, the exploration for and extraction
of minerals, oil, natural gas and similar non-regenerative resources.

DSOP 4 : Interim Financial Reporting

This DSOP is designed to provide guidance on the applica-
tion of accounting principles and financial reporting prac-
tices to public listed enterprises in the preparation of in-

terim financial statements. Application of the principles presented
in this Statement will facilitate compliance with the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange (KLSE) Listing Requirements on Quarterly Re-
porting of Financial Statements.

Interim financial reporting has been introduced by numerous
national stock exchanges and securities regulators as a require-
ment for listing because the interval between the annual financial
statements is considered to be too long a period for investors to be
without financial information of the investee companies. Interim/
Quarterly reports provide investors with material information on
the financial condition of a public listed companies in a timely, rel-

evant and reliable manner in order to assist investors in making
informed investment decisions particularly, when recent develop-
ments, especially price-sensitive information, affect trading condi-
tions.

The MASB in DSOP 4 recommends that the discrete method be
used in the preparation of interim financial statements, where items
of income and expenses are measured and recognised on a basis
consistent with that used in the preparation of annual financial state-
ments. Accounting policies and presentation of figures applied in
the preparation of interim financial statements should be consist-
ent with those in the annual financial statements.

The draft statement further states that to meet information needs
of users an enterprise may publish either a complete set of finan-
cial statements or a set of condensed financial statements.

DSOP 5 :  Income Taxes

The objective of this DSOP is to propose the accounting treat
ment for income taxes.  This DSOP is drafted based on the
revised IAS 12, Income Taxes but modified and adapted,

where applicable, to suit the Malaysian reporting environment.
The DSOP requires an enterprise to account for deferred tax

using the balance sheet liability method, a method which focuses
on temporary difference rather than timing differences. Tempo-
rary differences are differences between the tax base of an asset
or liability and its carrying amount in the balance sheet.

The statement requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be
recognised for all temporary differences, with exceptions. In addi-
tion, it states that the measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets should be based on the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the enterprise expects to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
The statement also prohibits discounting of deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Copies of the above documents can be obtained from :

Malaysian Accounting Standards Board,

Suites 5.01-5.03, 5th Floor,

Wisma Maran, No. 338,

Jalan Tuanku Abdul Rahman,

50300 Kuala Lumpur;

Tel : 03-4669199

Fax : 03-4669212

e-mail : masb@po.jaring.my

Website : http://masb.org.my
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APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The approved accounting standards referred to above are as follows :

MASB (Malaysian Accounting Standards Board) — Pronouncements

The Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) has issued the approved accounting standards

for application in relation to financial statements which are required to be prepared or lodged under any

law administered by the Securities Commission, Bank Negara or the Registrar of Companies.

These approved accounting standards shall apply to financial statements covering the period beginning

on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 1 contents for the financial statements. It also requires cer-
cont’d … tain disclosures on the face of the financial statements,

requires other line items to be disclosed either on the
face of the financial statements or in the note and sets out
recommended formats which enterprises may follow.

Applicability

Operative for financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 2 Inventories

Inventories are assets :

a) Held for sale in the ordinary course of business;

b) In the process of production for such sale; or

c) In the form of materials or supplies to be con-
sumed in the production process or in the ren-
dering of services.

Inventories should be valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value (NRV) where NRV is the selling
price less costs to complete the inventory and sell it.

Where specific cost is not determinable, the bench-
mark treatment is to use FIFO or weighted average
formulas. Use of LIFO is permitted as an allowed al-
ternative, but the financial statements should disclose
the lower of net realisable value and

i FIFO or weighted average cost; or

ii Current cost.

The cost of inventory is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

If inventory is written down to NRV, the write-down
is charged to expense. Any reversal of such a write-
down in a later period is credited to income by reduc-
ing that period’s cost of goods sold.

An enterprise should disclose the cost of sales or
the operating cost applicable to revenue recognised
as an expense during the period.

The standard specifically excludes construction con-

MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The standard sets out the basis for the presentation
of general financial statements in Malaysia and their
underlying principles with respect to :

• Fair presentation.

• Accounting policies.

• Going concern.

• Accrual basis of accounting.

• Consistency of presentation.

• Materiality and aggregation.

• Comparative information.

MASB 1 requires enterprises to provide a complete
set of financial statements, which includes the follow-
ing components :

a) Balance sheet.

b) Income statement.

c) A statement showing either :

• All changes in equity; or

• Changes in equity other than those arising
from capital transaction with owners and dis-
tribution to owners.

d) Cash-flow statement.

e) Accounting policies and explanatory notes.

The standard prescribes the minimum structure and
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     Extant Accounting
  Standard Superseded

MASB 1 Presentation of Financial Statements    IAS 1, IAS 5, IAS 13
MASB 2 Inventories   IAS 2
MASB 3 Net Profit or Loss for the Period,   IAS 8

Fundamental Errors and Changes
in Accounting Policies

MASB 4 Research and Development Costs   IAS 9
MASB 5 Cash-flow Statements   IAS 7
MASB 6 The Effects of Changes in Foreign   IAS 21

Exchange Rates
MASB 7 Construction Contracts   IAS 11
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MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 2 tracts, financial instruments, livestock, agricultural and
cont’d … forest products.

Applicability

Operative for financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 3 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Fundamental
Errors and Changes in Accounting Policies

Virtually all items that arise in the course of ordi-
nary activities are included as incomes or expenses
above the line in the determination of net profit/loss
for the period.

Although no longer referred to as abnormal items,
items of income or expense arising from ordinary ac-
tivities that are abnormal because of their size, nature
or incidences are separately disclosed, usually in the
notes.

The nature and effect of a change in accounting esti-
mate should be disclosed even if the effect, will only
be significant in a future period. If the effect cannot be
quantified, that fact should be disclosed.

A correction of a fundamental error should be treated
as a prior period adjustment to opening retained earn-
ings (benchmark) or recognised in current profit or
loss (allowed alternative). The nature and effect of the
change in the current and prior periods should be dis-
closed by the enterprise.

A change in accounting policy should be treated re-
trospectively by restating all prior periods presented and
adjusting opening retained earnings (benchmark). In
those situations where the adjustments relating to prior
periods cannot be reasonably determined, the change
may be accounted for prospectively. An allowed alter-
native for the adjustment arising from a retrospective
change in accounting policy is to include it in the deter-
mination of the net profit or loss for the current period.

Disclosure is required of the reasons for and effect
and accounting treatment of the change. Disclosure is
required about the nature and sale of discontinued  op-
erations.

A change in accounting policy should be made only
if required by statute or by the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board, or if the change results in a more
appropriate presentation of financial statements.

Applicability
Operative for financial statements covering periods

beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 4 Research and Development Costs

The standard defines research as original and
planned investigation undertaken to gain new knowl-
edge and understanding. Development costs are de-
fined as the application of research findings/knowledge

MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 4 to a plan or design for the production of new or im-
cont’d … proved products, systems etc.

Research costs should be expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. This is due to the uncertainty
of determining any future economic benefits to be de-
rived from the expenditure.

Development costs, provided they satisfy the crite-
ria laid down in the standard, may be capitalised.

Capitalised development costs should be amortised
on a systematic basis according to the pattern of eco-
nomic benefits realised in future periods.

Capitalised development costs of a project should be
written down to the extent that the unamortised balance
is no longer probable of being recovered from the ex-
pected future economic benefit. The impairment write-
down should be recognised an as expense in the period.

If the conditions that led to the impairment write-
down cease to exist the write-down should be reduced/
written back. The amount written back is to be recog-
nised as a reduction in the amount of development
costs recognised as expense for the period.

The standard requires disclosure of accounting poli-
cies for research and development, expense recogni-
tion, amortisation methods applied and a reconcilia-
tion of the balance of unamortised costs at the begin-
ning and end of the period.

Applicability
Operative for financial statements covering periods

beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 5 Cash-flow Statements

Cash-flow statement explains changes in cash and
cash equivalents during a period. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments subject to insig-
nificant risk of changes in value.

Changes in cash and cash equivalents are classified
in the statement as arising from :

• Operating activities;

• Investing activities; and

• Financing activities.

Operating activities : may be presented using either
the direct or indirect methods. Direct method shows
receipts from customers and payments to suppliers,
employees, government (taxes), etc. Indirect method
begins with accrual basis net profit or loss and adjusts
for major non-cash items.

Investing activities : disclose separately cash receipts
and payments arising from acquisition or sale of prop-
erty, plant and equipment; acquisition or sale of equity
or debt instruments of other enterprises (including
acquisition or sale of subsidiaries); and advances and
loans made to, or repayments from, third parties.

Financing activities : disclose separately cash receipts

   U P DAT E S
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MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 6 In the case of investments in foreign enterprises that
cont’d … operate independently, defined in the standard as foreign

entities, the financial statements should be translated
using closing rates for the balance sheet and transac-
tion rates (or, in practice, average rates) for incomes
and expenses. Differences that arise on translation of
the report of foreign entities should be taken directly
to equity.

MASB 6 enhances the transparency of the financial
statements by encouraging an enterprise to disclose
its foreign currency risk management policy and, in
aggregate for each foreign currency, amounts owing
or due where such amounts are not subject to hedg-
ing arrangements.

 Further, MASB 6 also requires specific disclosure of :

• Translation differences included in net income;

• Analysis of translation differences in equity; and

• Changes in rates after balance sheet date.

Applicability
Operative for financial statements covering periods

beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 7 Construction Contracts
If the total revenue, past and future costs, and the stage

of completion of a contract can be measured or estimated
reliably, revenues and costs should be recognised by stage
of completion (the ‘percentage-of-completion method’).

MASB 7 does not permit use of the completed con-
tract basis as a method for the recognition of revenue
as it is unlikely to result in the fair reporting of an en-
terprise’s performance. Expected losses should be rec-
ognised immediately.

MASB 7 provides conditions for early stage profit
recognition where it is often the case that the outcome
of the contract cannot be reliably estimated. In such
cases, contract revenue is recognised only to the ex-
tent of costs incurred that are expected to be recover-
able (cost recovery method).

The specific disclosure requirements of MASB 7 in-
clude (for each major contract or class of contracts) :

• Amount of contract revenue recognised;

• Method for determining that revenue;

• Method for determining stage of completion;

• For contracts in progress, disclose aggregate
cost incurred, recognised profits or losses, ad-
vances received and retention;

• Gross amount due from customers under the
contract(s); and

• Gross amount owned to customers under the
contract(s).

Applicability
Operative for financial statements covering periods

beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

 U P DAT E S
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MASB No Subject Matters

MASB 5 and payments arising from an issue of share or other
cont’d … equity securities; payments made to redeem such se-

curities; proceeds arising from issuing debentures,
loans, notes; and repayments of such securities.

Cash flows from taxes should be disclosed separately
within operating activities, unless they can be specifi-
cally identified with either investing or financing activ-
ity. Similarly, interest paid, and interest and dividends
received may be classified as operating cash flows un-
less they represent costs of obtaining financial re-
sources or returns on investments respectively.

Investing and financing activities that do not give rise
to cash flows (a non-monetary transaction such as acqui-
sition of property by issuing debt) should be excluded
from the cash-flow statement but disclosed separately.

Applicability
Operative for financial statements covering periods

beginning on or after 1 July 1999.

MASB 6 The Effect of Changes in Exchange Rates

MASB 6 requires that foreign currency transactions
should be translated at the spot rate on the date of the
transaction. The standard also provides for the treat-
ment of gains and losses arising on the settlement of a
transaction or where a transaction unsettled at balance
sheet date is affected by changes in exchange rates.

Exchange difference arising on a monetary item that
amounts to a net investment in a foreign entity, in which
case they are reported in equity until the asset or li-
ability is disposed of.

Consolidation of a parent enterprise’s financial state-
ments and any foreign operations should reflect the
financial and operational relationship that exists be-
tween an investing enterprise and its foreign enterprise.
To achieve this, MASB 6 provides two alternative meth-
ods for translation of a foreign enterprise’s financial
statements depending on whether the enterprise is a
separate, quasi-independent enterprise, or where it rep-
resents a direct extension of the operations of the in-
vesting enterprise.

For investments in foreign enterprises that are inte-
gral to the operations of the parent (not independent),
defined in the Standard as a foreign operation, income
statement items are translated at the rate prevailing at
the date of the transaction (for practical reasons, aver-
age exchange rate). Balance sheet monetary items
should be translated at the closing rate, and non-mon-
etary balances at the rate that relates to the valuation
basis. This means the rate on acquisition date for non-
monetary assets carried at historical cost and the rate
at valuation date for revalued non-monetary assets.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of the
report for foreign operations should be taken to income.
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DATES TO
REMEMBER FOR 1999

EXAMINATION

September 1

Closing date for registration as a

student to sit for the examination of

that year.

October 15

Closing date for submission of ex-

amination entry for the examination

of that year.

December 13-17

EXAMINATION.

Of The Malaysian Institute of Taxation

One of the main objectives of the

Malaysian Institute of Taxation

(MIT) is to train and build up a

pool of qualified tax personnel as well as to

foster and maintain the highest standard of

professional ethics and competency among

its members.

One avenue of producing qualified tax

personnel is through professional examina-

tions. As such, MIT conducted its first pro-

fessional examination in December 1995.

To-date, the MlT has successfully con-

ducted four examinations. The professional

examinations also seek to overcome the

present shortage of qualified tax practition-

ers in the country.

Examination Structure

The professional examination is currently

held annually and is comprised of 3 levels.

Foundation Level

m Taxation I

m Economics & Business Statistics

m Financial Accounting I

Intermediate Level

m Taxation II

m Taxation III

m Company & Business Law

Final Level

m Taxation IV

m Taxation V

m Business & Financial Management

m Financial Accounting II

How To Register

You can contact the Institute’s Secretariat

for a copy of the Students’ Guide. The Guide

contains general information on the exami-

nations and a set of registration forms which

must be submitted with the necessary docu-

ments to the Secretariat.

Entrance Requirements

(a) Minimum Entry :

• At least 17 years old.

• At least two principal level passes of the

HSC/STPM examination (excluding

Kertas Am/Pengajian Am) or the equiva-

lent.

• Credits in English Language and Math-

ematics and an ordinary pass in Bahasa

Malaysia at  MCE/SPM.

(b) Degrees, diplomas and professional

qualifications (local/overseas) recog-

nised by the Institute to supersede mini-

mum requirements in (a).

(c) Full Members of local and overseas

accounting bodies.

Exemptions

Exemption from specific papers in the

professional examinations is available and

extent of exemption granted will depend on

qualifications attained and the course con-

tents as determined by the MIT Council.

Exemption Fees

Foundation RM50.00 per subject

Intermediate RM60.00 per subject

Final RM70.00 per subject

Examination Fees

Foundation RM50.00 per subject

Intermediate RM60.00 per subject

Final RM70.00 per subject

For further enquiries, please contact the Secretariat at Dewan Akauntan, No. 2, Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3, Brickfields,
50470 Kuala Lumpur. Telephone : 03-2274 5055, Fax : 03-2274 1783

PROFESSIONAL EXAMINATIONS
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Incorporation
and Aim

The Malaysian As-
sociation of Account-
ing Administrators
(MAAA) was incorpo-
rated in 1990 with limi-

ted liability under Section 16(4) of the Compa-
nies Act, 1965 in recognition of the two-tiered na-
ture of the accountancy profession. MAAA (pre-
viously known as Malaysian Association of Ac-
counting Technicians) is a company sponsored
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA).

Main Objectives
• To provide a qualification to be known as Ac-

counting Technicians/Administrators for per-
sons employed on duties customarily under-
taken by assistants to accountants registered
with the MIA.

• To provide an organisation and membership
for such persons who are desirous of acquir-
ing such qualification and persons who are
granted such qualification.

• To promote in the public interest the techni-
cal competence of such persons engaged in
positions and performing the functions of
accounting technicians/administrators.

Council Members (1998/99 Term)
Elected Members
Izhar Abd Kahar (President)
Koo Yew Fook, Allan (Vice President)
Chin Wah Yin
Hanapi Rasol
Kasim Darus
Lim Ah Leck
Low Han Men, Aric
Mahadevan s/o Gengadaram
Mok Kam Seng
Panneer Selvam
Raja Noorhana bt Raja Harun
Yong Yoon Kee

MIA Nominated Members
Chian Ngook For, Daniel
Lam Kee Soon
Yue Sau Him

Secretariat Office
Malaysian Association of Accounting Administrators
Dewan Akauntan, No. 2, Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3,
Brickfields, 50470 Kuala Lumpur.
Tel : 03-2274 5055 or Fax : 03-2274 1783
e-mail : maaa@mia.org.my

 M A A A  N E W S
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GETTING TO KNOW YOUR MAAA COUNCIL MEMBERS

MALAYSIAN ASSOCIATION
OF ACCOUNTING ADMINISTRATORS

In this final part of the series to introduce to members our current

MAAA Council Members, we publish the profiles of Yong Yoon

Kee and Mok Kam Seng.

YONG YOON KEE
YONG holds a Diploma in Accounting from Ungku

Omar Polytechnic, Ipoh, Perak. He has been an
assessment officer in the Inland Revenue Board
(previously known as Income Tax Department) for
21 years. His responsibilities include assessment of
individual tax, partnership tax, company tax, real
property gains tax and tax prosecution.

He began his career with the Inland Revenue
Board at its Melaka branch back in 1978. Since 1996,
Yong has served the Inland Revenue Board at its
Muar, Johor Branch in the ‘Audit Luar Unit’. Yong
has been a Council member since 19 June 1993.

MOK KAM SENG
MOK has an illustrious career that spans over 3

decades with exposure in a wide spectrum of man-
agement areas focusing on accounts and finance,
while working in various large corporations includ-
ing Sime Darby, Uniphoenix, Antah Group, Har Hold-
ings, East Asiatic Co., Soon Seng Group and Eng-
land Optical Group.

He worked his way up from an accounts clerk to a
general manager. During his career, he held various
other positions such as : accountant, corporate finance
and administration manager, factory manager, assistant marketing manager and financial
controller. Currently Mok is a trainer in practical accounting cum management consult-
ant to a private institution. He is also an authorised distributor of computer softwares.

He is a triple Diploma holder : Accounting from the London Chamber of Commerce
& Industry, Investment Analysis from Curtin University and Management from the
Malaysian Institute of Management. He is a member of the Institute of Cost & Execu-
tive Accountants. Besides this he has served many years in various other social and
voluntary organisations. Mok has been serving on the Council since 30 July 1993.

LATEST DEVELOPMENTS

n Negotiations are in earnest with the relevant parties to conduct the necessary
course papers under the amnesty programme.

n The Council is studying the possibility of organising tea talks for members.
n Membership drives in Johor Bahru and Kuala Lumpur are being worked out.
n The new MAAA Examination syllabus (2nd draft) approved by the MIA Board

of Studies (and that adheres to the UNCTAD stipulations) is currently under
review by the Council.

n The Council is planning for the MAAA Conference, which will be held in
February 2000.

E D I TO R  F O R  M A A A  N E W S  :  L O W  H A N  M E N , A R I C
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REPORT ON SECOND MEETING OF THE

SECURITIES COMMISSION’S WORKING GROUP

ON ACCOUNTING ISSUES

The Working Group met for the second time on 4 August 1999 to
deliberate on the review findings of the Financial Reporting

Surveillance and Compliance Department (FRSC) of the Securities
Commission (SC) on the application of IAS 7 : Cash-flow Statement by
companies listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (KLSE).

The following are issues put forward by

the SC and deliberated at the meeting of the

above Working Group :

• Determination of cash and cash

equivalent components and cash

restriction issues

The Working Group is of the opinion that

the determination of the components of

CCE rests on the discretion of the company

and it’s policy. Classification must satisfy

Paras 6 and 7 of Malaysian Accounting

Standards Board (MASB) 5. Further, in ac-

cordance with Para 46 of MASB 5, the com-

pany must disclose the policy it adopts in

determining the composition of CCE.

SC suggested that MASB provide ex-

tended commentary in MASB 5 on the is-

sue.

• Foreign exchange differences on

the translation of foreign subsidi-

aries — position on the cash-flow

statement and elements to be

presented

MASB clarified that the ef fects of ex-

change rate changes should be disclosed as

both its effect on operating, investing and

financing activities during the period as well

as that to reconcile CCE at the beginning

and the end of the period.

• Discussion on ‘major category of

assets and liabilities’ as stated in

Paragraph 40(d) of IAS 7

It was decided by the Working Group that

reference should be made to Para 66 of

MASB 1 : Presentation of Financial State-

ments which provides the minimum infor-

mation to be presented on the face of the

balance sheet and this can be used as ma-

jor category under statement of cash flow.

• Discussion on ‘other business

units’ as stated in Paragraphs 39

and 40 of IAS 7

The Working Group is of the view that

‘other business units’ should include joint

ventures and partnerships but exclude as-

sociates.

• The presentation of loans and

advances to and from related

companies

The issue is whether loans and advances

to/from related companies such as associ-

ated companies be construed as part of the

investment of that company and therefore

may be included as part of the purchase

price classified under the heading of invest-

ing activities, or be taken as a financing ex-

tended or received and should accordingly

be classified as financing activities.

It was agreed that application must be

consistent with provisions in Paras 6 and 16

(e) & (f) of the Standard.

• Classification of deferred expendi-

ture and long term portion of land

and development expenditure

Deferred expenditure is usually pre-

sented as a separate line item on the bal-

ance sheet and therefore often treated as a

long-term asset. Many of the companies

reviewed include preliminary and pre-oper-

ating expenses as deferred expenditure.

The Working Group is of the view that if

an expense passes the ‘deferred expendi-

ture’ test, it must be treated accordingly, i.e.

classified under investing activities.

• Classification of the long-term

portion of land and development

expenditure

Some companies are of the opinion that

the long-term portion of land and develop-

ment expenditure should be presented as

operating activities since they are assets that

will be used in the normal course of busi-

ness. However, it could be argued that the

item is a long-term asset and since the ex-

pense incurred is to generate future income,

it should therefore be classified as invest-

ing activities.

The Working Group is of the view that if

the item is non-current, it should be treated

as investment and classified as investing

activities.

• Capitalised depreciation

Companies, especially property develop-

ment and construction related companies,

capitalise depreciation into the relevant ac-

counts, of which a portion is debited to the

profit and loss account as cost of sales.

It was agreed that the depreciation

amount to be adjusted in the cash-flow state-

ment would be the amount debited in the

profit and loss and that the amount be capi-

talised.
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   D I S C I P L I N A RY  C A S E S

CASE 1

A member, A. Arumugam (Mem no.
 978) was disciplined for contra-

vening Section 9(4) of the Companies
Act, 1965 by admitting a member of
the Institute who was not an approved
company auditor as a partner into his
firm and had continued to provide au-
dit services to other companies even
though one of his ‘partners’ is not an
approved company auditor; thereby
committing an act amounting to ‘unpro-

fessional conduct’ within the meaning
as provided under Rule 43 of the Ac-
countants Rules, 1972.

The Disciplinary Committee ordered that
his membership of the Institute be sus-
pended for a period of three years; and that
he also pays to the Institute a sum of
RM1,500 in respect of costs and expenses
of and incidental to the inquiry held by the
Disciplinary Committee and the investiga-
tion held by the Investigation Committee.

CASE 2

A member, Naraysamy a/l Kobale
(Mem no. 8180) was disciplined

The Institute has taken the following disciplinary action against members for ‘unprofessional conduct’

and breaching the Institute’s By-laws (On Professional Conduct and Ethics).

for contravening Section 9(4) of the
Companies Act, 1965 by holding him-
self out as a partner of a member firm
of auditors when he was not an ap-
proved company auditor, thereby com-
mitting an act amounting to ‘unprofes-

sional conduct’ within the meaning as
provided under Rule 43 of the Account-
ants Rules, 1972.

The Disciplinary Committee ordered that
his membership of the Institute be sus-
pended for a period of two years; and that
he also pays to the Institute a sum of
RM1,500 in respect of costs and expenses
of and incidental to the inquiry held by the
Disciplinary Committee and the investiga-
tion held by the Investigation Committee.

CASE 3

A member, Wong Chee Ming (Mem
 no. 10381) was disciplined for

breaching By-law 18-1 of the Institute’s
By-laws (On Professional Conduct

and Ethics) pertaining to ‘Acts Discred-

itable to the Profession’ by submitting
a false testimonial for the purposes of
reclassification to Public Accountant.

The Disciplinary Committee ordered that
his membership of the Institute be sus-
pended for a period of one year; and that he
also pays to the Institute a sum of RM1,000
in respect of costs and expenses of and in-
cidental to the inquiry held by the Discipli-
nary Committee and the investigation held
by the Investigation Committee.

CASE 4

Members who are partners of a
member firm were disciplined for

breaching By-law 7-2(2)(b) of the In-
stitute’s By-laws (On Professional
Conduct and Ethics) pertaining to ‘Ad-

vertising, Publicity and Solicitation

in Respect of Professional Services of
Public Practices’. The members had
caused their firm to place an article in
one of the newspapers, which contra-
vened By-law 7-2(2)(b).

The Disciplinary Committee ordered that
the members be reprimanded by writing
under the hand of the Chairman of the Dis-
ciplinary Committee and that a penalty of
RM300 be imposed upon each and every
partner of the member firm.

 M I A ’ S  T E C H N I C A L  A N D  P R AC T I C E  N E W S

C O L U M N S

TRANSFORMING THE PROFESSION

Professional associations are not only reorganising their efforts
to face the future differently, but are also looking into the manage-
ment accounting perspective. This will improve the representation
of the members who are in the management related roles. Readers
will also recognise a shift in the role of management accounting in

The Finance and Management Accounting Com-
mittee of the International Federation of Ac-

countants is embarking on a project to study the
transformation of the profession in various coun-
tries including Malaysia.
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value creation from the various articles published monthly.
The project is to study these trends in Malaysia in the form of a

case study. Upon completion, all studies will be published as an
International Management Accounting Study. If any of our readers
are interested in participating in this and assisting in the prepara-
tion of the paper, please write in or contact :

Mr. V. Jegatheesan, Senior Technical Manager

Malaysian Institute of Accountants, Dewan Akauntan

No. 2, Jalan Tun Sambanthan 3, Brickfields

50470 Kuala Lumpur

Tel : 03-2274 5055, Fax : 03-2273 1016
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